
 
Town of Surfside 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
AGENDA 

September 24, 2020 – 6:00 p.m. 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Town Commission Liaison Report – Commissioner Salzhauer 
  
3. Approval of Minutes – August 27, 2020 

 
4. Applications: 
 

A. 9516 Bay Drive – New Single Family Residence 
B. 9309 Abbott Avenue – Addition 
C. 824 88 Street – Awning  
D. 1025 90th Street – Garage Conversion 
E. 9157 Froude Avenue – Garage Conversion 
F. 400 93rd Street – Front Yard Fence 
G. 9588 Harding Avenue – Sign 
H. 9454 Harding Avenue - Sign 
I. 9341 Collins Avenue – Monument Sign 
J. 9472 Harding Avenue - Sign 

 
5.   Discussion Items: 
 

A. Future Agenda Items 
   

6.   Adjournment 
 
THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990, 
ALL PERSONS THAT ARE DISABLED; WHO NEED SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING 
BECAUSE OF THAT DISABILITY SHOULD CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-4863 EXT. 226 NO 
LATER THAN FOUR DAYS PRIOR TO SUCH PROCEEDING.   
 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANYONE WISHING TO 
APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE COMMISSION, WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER 
CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR HEARING, WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH 
PURPOSE, MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD 
SHALL INCLUDE THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE VIEWED AT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK, TOWN OF SURFSIDE TOWN HALL, 9293 
HARDING AVENUE.  ANYONE WISHING TO OBTAIN A COPY OF ANY AGENDA ITEM SHOULD CONTACT THE TOWN 
CLERK AT 305-861-4863.  A COMPLETE AGENDA PACKET IS ALSO AVAILABLE ON THE TOWN WEBSITE AT 
www.townofsurfsidefl.gov. 
 
TWO OR MORE MEMBERS OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OR OTHER TOWN BOARDS MAY ATTEND THIS MEETING. 
 
THESE MEETINGS MAY BE CONDUCTED BY MEANS OF OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA 
TECHNOLOGY, SPECIFICALLY, A TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL.  THE LOCATION 9293 HARDING AVENUE, 
SURFSIDE, FL  33154, WHICH IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC, SHALL SERVE AS AN ACCESS POINT FOR SUCH 
COMMUNICATION. 

http://www.townofsurfsidefl.gov/
http://www.townofsurfsidefl.gov/


Town of Surfside 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

MINUTES 
August 27, 2020 – 6:00 p.m. 

Town Hall Commission Chambers –  
9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor, Surfside, FL  33154 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

Chair Frankel called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.

Present: Chair Judith Frankel, Board Member Fred Landsman, Board Member
James MacKenzie (arrived at 6:10 p.m.), Board Member Ruben Bravo, and 
Board Member Oliver Sanchez. 

Absent: Board Member Deborah Wecselman and Board Member Robert Izaurralde 

Also, Present: Commissioner Eliana Salzhauer, Town Planner James Hickey, 
Assistant Town Attorney Edward Martos and Assistant Town Attorney Tony Recio. 

2. Town Commission Liaison Report – Commissioner Salzhauer

Commissioner Salzhauer stated that the Commission discussed the Planning and
Zoning Board and would invite their input in order to finalize the rewrite of the Code.

3. Approval of Minutes – July 30, 2020

A motion was made by Board Member Landsman to approve the July 30, 2020
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes, seconded by Board Member
Sanchez. The motion carried with a 4-0 vote with Committee Member MacKenzie
absent.

Chair Frankel would like to adjust the agenda in order to place some of the easier
items to be heard first.

Assistant Town Attorney Recio stated that the following applicants did not sign the
affidavit and hold harmless as required and will be deferred to September 24, 2020.
Those items are items 5E, 5H, 5L and 5M.

A motion was made by Committee Landsman to defer items 5E, 5H, 5L and 5M to
the September 24, 2020 agenda, seconded by Committee Member Bravo. The
motion carried with a 5-0 vote.

ITEM 3

PAGE 1



2 

Chair Frankel would like to hear items 5A, 5C, 5F, 5G and 5B in that order first and 
then continue down the list. 

A motion was made by Committee member Sanchez to reorder the agenda as 
stated by Chair Frankel to hear items 5A, 5C, 5F, 5G and 5B in that order followed 
by the rest of the agenda items, seconded by Committee member Landsman. The 
motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

4. Appointment of a Vice Chair

Discussion among the Board Members took place regarding the appointment of a
Vice Chair.

A motion was made by Committee Member Landsman to appoint Committee Member
Sanchez as the Vice Chair for the Planning and Zoning Board, seconded by
Committee Member Bravo. The motion carried with a 5 -0 vote.

5. Applications:

A. 9516 Bay Drive – New Single-Family Residence

Assistant Town Attorney Martos read the quasi-judicial statement into the record
and polled the Board Members.

Chair Frankel stated that she was emailed by two of the applicants explaining their
application. She confirmed that she can be impartial in these proceedings.

Committee Member MacKenzie stated that he received a call from one of the
applicants and who was looking for further clarification.  He confirmed that he can
be impartial in these proceedings.

Committee Member Bravo stated that he received a text message from a neighbor
to comment on this item. He confirmed that he can be impartial in these
proceedings.

Vice Chair Sanchez stated that he received an email from the Town from one of
the neighbors. He confirmed that he can be impartial in these proceedings.

Town Planner Hickey introduced the item.  He stated that the property is located
at 9516 Bay Drive, within the H30A zoning district. The applicant is requesting to
build a new 10,543 square-foot two-story home.  The plans include a new
driveway, walkways, pool, deck, 3 car garage, covered patio and roof deck. The
applicant plans to keep the existing gate and hedge.

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review
Board. In this report Staff presents the following:

PAGE 2



3 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes
based on the Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the
review.

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the
review from the 2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

Staff finds the application meets the 2020 Zoning Code, the 2006 Zoning Code 
and the current Zoning in Progress provided the following conditions are met: 

1) Pursuant to the Zoning in Progress notice published on August 9, 2020,
and Section 90-6 of the Town of Surfside Code, the rooftop deck
depicted on the plans is not permitted.  This approval is subject to
removal of this feature from the plans prior to building permit, except in
the event that, prior to issuance of a building permit, the Town
Commission adopts a zoning ordinance that allows the feature.  In such
case, the feature, as may be modified to meet the requirements for such
feature imposed by the ordinance allowing it, may be approved as part
of the building permit, unless, in the sole discretion of the Planning
Director, such modifications to accommodate the feature materially
impact the design approved by the Planning and Zoning Board or
frustrate the intent of the Design Guidelines.

2) Pursuant to the Zoning in Progress notice published on August 9, 2020,
and Section 90-6 of the Town of Surfside Code, ornamental and
screening features projecting more than 6" within a setback depicted
on the plans are not permitted.  This approval is subject to removal of
this feature from the plans prior to building permit, except in the event
that, prior to issuance of a building permit, the Town Commission
adopts a zoning ordinance that allows the feature.  In such case, the
feature, as may be modified to meet the requirements for such feature
imposed by the ordinance allowing it, may be approved as part of the
building permit, unless, in the sole discretion of the Planning Director,
such modifications to accommodate the feature materially impact the
design approved by the Planning and Zoning Board or frustrate the
intent of the Design Guidelines.

3) Pursuant to the Zoning in Progress notice published on August 9, 2020,
and Section 90-6 of the Town of Surfside Code, the stairway within the
north setback depicted on the plans is not permitted.  This approval is
subject to removal of this feature from the plans prior to building permit,
except in the event that, prior to issuance of a building permit, the Town
Commission adopts a zoning ordinance that allows the feature.  In such
case, the feature, as may be modified to meet the requirements for such
feature imposed by the ordinance allowing it, may be approved as part
of the building permit, unless, in the sole discretion of the Planning
Director, such modifications to accommodate the feature materially

PAGE 3



4 

impact the design approved by the Planning and Zoning Board or 
frustrate the intent of the Design Guidelines. 

4) Pursuant to the Zoning in Progress notice published on August 9, 2020,
and Section 90-6 of the Town of Surfside Code, a front and rear yard
equaling less than 36% as depicted on the plans is not permitted.  This
approval is subject to removal of this feature from the plans prior to
building permit, except in the event that, prior to issuance of a building
permit, the Town Commission adopts a zoning ordinance that allows
the feature.  In such case, the feature, as may be modified to meet the
requirements for such feature imposed by the ordinance allowing it,
may be approved as part of the building permit, unless, in the sole
discretion of the Planning Director, such modifications to accommodate
the feature materially impact the design approved by the Planning and
Zoning Board or frustrate the intent of the Design Guidelines.

5) Pursuant to the Zoning in Progress notice published on August 9, 2020,
and Section 90-6 of the Town of Surfside Code, the rooftop deck
depicted on the plans is not permitted.  This approval is subject to
removal of this feature from the plans prior to building permit, except in
the event that, prior to issuance of a building permit, the Town
Commission adopts a zoning ordinance that allows the feature.  In such
case, the feature, as may be modified to meet the requirements for such
feature imposed by the ordinance allowing it, may be approved as part
of the building permit, unless, in the sole discretion of the Planning
Director, such modifications to accommodate the feature materially
impact the design approved by the Planning and Zoning Board or
frustrate the intent of the Design Guidelines.

6) Provide calculations demonstrating 35% pervious area is being met per
2020 Code Sec. 90.49. (42.73% stated on plans)

7) Pool is setback 15’ from the Indian Creek Bulkhead line. Requires
engineer’s analysis indicating that the seawall will not be compromised
by the pool per Sec 90-60.

8) A fence or ornamental wall may be placed within the front yard or
primary corner yard if granted design review approval by the planning
and zoning board per Sec 90-56.

Town Planner Hickey stated that the resubmittals would answer questions they might 
have. 

Sharon Hakmon, applicant, discussed his project and stated that he made the 
changes required and complied with both the 2020 and 2006 code and all the 
requirements and recommendations made by the Board. 

PAGE 4



5 

Assistant Town Attorney Recio noted for the record the email received on this item. 

The following member of the public spoke on the item: 

Anthony Blate asked what the setback is on this property. He also stated that 
according to 90-48.3 it states that the setback is 50 feet instead of the ones on Point 
Lake and believes the setback on this property is 50 feet. He requested that code to 
be read to him by the Town Attorney. 

Town Planner Hickey stated that the required setback on Bay Drive is 25 feet and 50 
feet on the south side of Surfside.  The setbacks were verified and he was explained 
the interpretation of the code regarding the setbacks. 

Assistant Town Attorney Martos read that section of the Code to speaker Blate and 
according to the Town Planner they are complying with the setbacks. 

Commissioner Salzhauer stated that the interpretation of that code be up to the 
Attorney to interpret. 

Assistant Town Attorney Martos addressed the comments made by speaker Blate 
and Commissioner Salzhauer and the interpretation of the Code is to be done by the 
Town Planner and not the Town Attorney. 

Chair Frankel addressed the comments made by speaker Blate and Commissioner 
Salzhauer and what the determination of the interpretation of the Code is. 

Chair Frankel closed public comments. 

Board Member MacKenzie commented on Town Planner Hickey’s recommendations 
and asked for clarification on portions of the recommendations and the setbacks of 
the property. 

Town Planner Hickey addressed the comments and questions made by Board 
Member MacKenzie. 

Vice Chair Sanchez addressed the comments made by speaker Blate and the 
urgency of the applicant complying with the Zoning in Progress and spoke regarding 
the email received from the neighbor from the south. He spoke regarding aspects of 
the plans including the roof deck, access and compliance with fire code.  He spoke 
regarding the upgrading of the seawall and its inspection. 

Town Planner Hickey addressed the comments made by Vice Chair Sanchez 
regarding the doors and recess steps and compliance with the fire code. He also 
stated that the seawall would get looked at by an engineer and they have to submit 
a report when they request a permit for the pool. 

PAGE 5



6 

Chair Frankel asked regarding the upgrading of the seawall and asked if all water 
drains. 

Building Official Prieto stated that all rain and stormwater has to be retained on the 
property and percolates into the green area on each lot. 

Further discussion took place among the Board Members and Town Staff regarding 
the recommendations by Town Planner Hickey. 

Board Member Landsman thanked the applicant for removing the roof deck. He 
commented on other board members’ comments and details. He asked for the group 
to stay focused on what needs to be accomplished and what they are able to 
consider. He commented on the delay of all applications and the Town Planner will 
look at the code and the plans. 

Board Member Bravo stated they have the same comments and agrees with Board 
Member Landsman and they have been discussing for the last hour the same items 
as before and everyone has their own interpretation. He does not think it is 
appropriate for this neighborhood and there are areas that he cannot comment on 
because he does not have enough information. 

Chair Frankel stated they are trying to catch up with the plans and style and type of 
roof. 

Chair Frankel agrees that it is difficult when things come in late. She commented on 
the stairwell being removed, the condition of the seawall and have it brought up to 
code. She commented on the massing of the home and stated that it is a very large 
home and even if it meets code, it does not comply with the intent of the design 
guidelines, and requested for the applicant to remove the gate. 

Assistant Town Attorney Martos stated that some of the board members made direct 
requests and to give an opportunity to the applicant if he is able to make concessions 
to see where they stand on various ideas. 

Sharon Hakmon addressed the comments and recommendations suggested by the 
Board members. 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Sanchez to defer the item. 

Assistant Town Attorney Recio clarified and stated that the board is entitled to 
approve, approve with conditions pursuant to guidelines but a deferral is up to the 
applicant and encourages the board to decide unless the applicant agrees to defer 
the item for a third time. 

Commissioner Salzhauer commented on the air conditioning unit being on the roof 
top. 

PAGE 6



7 

Chair Frankel asked the applicant if he is willing to come for A third time in order to 
defer the item.  She commented on the design guidelines and the house is not in 
keeping with the guidelines of the neighborhood. They are requesting to reduce the 
massing of the 2nd floor and deferring the item for a third meeting in order to correct 
this. 

Sharon Hakmon, applicant, addressed the comments made by the Board regarding 
the changes to his plans and the massing. 

Chair Frankel addressed the comments made by the applicant regarding the changes 
needed to be made. 

Assistant Town Attorney Martos explained the rules of deferring the items and how 
many meetings an applicant can be deferred to and asked if the applicant agrees to 
a deferral to a third meeting. 

Beatriz Carta, attorney representing Sharon Hakmon, applicant, would like to 
understand and have a clear explanation of each one of the conditions her client is 
being asked to meet. 

Chair Frankel stated that the Zoning in Progress was put into place by the 
Commission and not this Board and it was not discussed at the last meeting. What 
was discussed in the last meeting was the massing and the Board could give her 
more specifics which is the design guidelines.  

Board Member MacKenzie spoke regarding the massing of the property and believes 
it needs to be articulated. The walls do not meet the guidelines and the massing on 
the front façade and the rear façade. He suggested to go back to his architect to set 
the walls back.  

Applicant Hakmon is willing to move the stairs, move the AC and create some type 
of terrace inside and would like to keep the gate. 

Attorney Carta asked for the criteria the Board is requesting. 

Chair Frankel stated to bring the walls north and south back, at least one-half has to 
go back and the terrace uncovered, reducing the overall scale of the gate would 
improve the look from the street. She stated the conditions are the articulation of the 
north and south side, removal of the stairway, removal of the mechanical on the roof 
as required, seawall be up to code and 33% reduction. 

Sharon Hakmon agrees to the deferral but does not agree with 50% of the setback 
of the second floor. 

After a lengthy discussion on the item and changes requested by the Board, and the 
design review guidelines requirements, the following motion was made. 

PAGE 7



8 

A motion was made by Board Member MacKenzie to defer the item to the September 
24, 2020 meeting, seconded by Board Member Bravo. The motion carried with a 5-0 
vote. 

B. 9556 Carlyle Avenue - New Single-Family Residence

Town Planner Hickey introduced the item. He stated that the property is
located at 9556 Carlyle Avenue, within the H30B zoning district. The
applicant is requesting to build a new 4,506 square foot two-story home.  The
plans include a new driveway, walkway, pool, deck, covered terrace and
jacuzzi.

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review
Board. In this report Staff presents the following:

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes
based on the Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the
review

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the
review from the 2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes 

[New single-family homes require notification the surrounding neighbors – 10 
days prior to the review meeting]  

1) Pursuant to the Zoning in Progress notice published on August 9, 2020,
and Section 90-6 of the Town of Surfside Code, more than 15% for
accessory structures is not permitted.  This approval is subject to removal
of this feature from the plans prior to building permit, except in the event
that, prior to issuance of a building permit, the Town Commission adopts a
zoning ordinance that allows the feature.  In such case, the feature, as may
be modified to meet the requirements for such feature imposed by the
ordinance allowing it, may be approved as part of the building permit,
unless, in the sole discretion of the Planning Director, such modifications
to accommodate the feature materially impact the design approved by the
Planning and Zoning Board or frustrate the intent of the Design Guidelines.

2) Pursuant to the Zoning in Progress notice published on August 9, 2020,
and Section 90-6 of the Town of Surfside Code, eaves projecting more than
8” into the setback are not permitted.  This approval is subject to removal
of this feature from the plans prior to building permit, except in the event
that, prior to issuance of a building permit, the Town Commission adopts a
zoning ordinance that allows the feature.  In such case, the feature, as may
be modified to meet the requirements for such feature imposed by the
ordinance allowing it, may be approved as part of the building permit,

PAGE 8



9 

unless, in the sole discretion of the Planning Director, such modifications 
to accommodate the feature materially impact the design approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Board or frustrate the intent of the Design Guidelines. 

3) Pursuant to the Zoning in Progress notice published on August 9, 2020,
and Section 90-6 of the Town of Surfside Code, the access steps in the
north and south setback as depicted on the plans are not permitted.  This
approval is subject to removal of this feature from the plans prior to building
permit, except in the event that the land development regulations in place
at the time of building permit allow the feature.  In such case, the feature,
as may be modified to meet the requirements for the feature set forth in the
applicable land development regulations, may be approved as part of the
building permit, unless, at the sole discretion of the Planning Director, such
modifications to accommodate the feature materially impact the design
approved by the Planning and Zoning Board or frustrate the intent of the
Design Guidelines.

4) Pursuant to the Zoning in Progress notice published on August 9, 2020,
and Section 90-6 of the Town of Surfside Code, 20% of all landscaping
must be Florida Friendly. Please provide details showing this ZIP condition
is being met.

Jeff Rose, representing the applicant explained the project and the pavers as well 
as the pool deck concerns. 

Town Planner Hickey stated if they would change the pool deck to an actual pool 
and jacuzzi they would be in compliance with the Zoning in Progress. 

Pearl Dwek, the applicant, agrees to enlarge the pool if that is what will be needed 
for approval. 

The following individual from the public spoke: 
George Kousoulas 

Chair Frankel stated that they should look at decorative features as well in the 
future. 

Chair Frankel closed the public comments. 

Vice Chair Sanchez stated he is concerned about the side stair entry. He asked 
regarding the trash containers and are our solid waste employees having to go 
inside the property to service the house. 

Chair Frankel stated they removed the stairs and no door on the side due to the 
Zoning in Progress. 

Jeff Rose stated that the client will be taking out the trash containers and will pull 
them forward. 

PAGE 9



10 

Board Member MacKenzie spoke regarding the calculation on the second and first 
floor, articulation of second floor, and would like a condition of the roof and 
transparency of light coming through. 

Chair Frankel suggested doing something with the color of the roof and likes the 
overhangs. She would like to discuss this further and amending it from the Zoning 
in Progress. 

Vice Chair Sanchez wants to make sure that the garbage bins and recycling bins 
will be brought to the front. 

Jeff Rose stated they would look for something lighter for the roof color and use 
cement tiles. 

Board Member Landsman asked Pearl Dwek, applicant, if she agrees with the 
change of roof tile color as long as it is in the gray tones. 

The applicant stated that she is fine with the change in the roof tile color. 

A motion was made by Board Member Bravo to approve lightening the roof tile 
color, moving the trash cans forward, and the changes to the pool deck, seconded 
by Board Member Landsman. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

Discussion among the Board Members and Commissioner Salzhauer regarding 
the Zoning in Progress and its changes. 

Board Member MacKenzie commented on the first-floor setback requirements. 

Town Planner Hickey addressed the questions asked by Board Member 
MacKenzie. 

C. 8955 Collins Avenue – Monument Sign

Town Planner Daniel Mantell introduced the item.  He stated that the subject
property is located at 8955 Collins Avenue and is within the H120 zoning district
(RD-1 zoning district in the 2006 code). The applicant is requesting one Ground
Mounted Monument Sign.

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Planning and
Zoning Board. In this report Staff presents the following:

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes
based on the Zoning in Progress in place along with the results of the
review

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the
review from the 2020 Zoning Code only.

PAGE 10



11 

• Staff Recommendation
Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes subject 
to the following:  

1) Ensure the 5’ minimum required setback is being met.  Per 2020 code
section 90-73.

2) Provide landscaping at the base of the monument sign. Per 2020 code
section 90-73.

Yanelis Martinez, attorney for the applicant, presented the item. 

Board Member Bravo asked if this is a permanent or temporary sign. He 
stated he could not find information on the illumination. 

Town Planner Mantell stated it is a permanent sign. 

Attorney Yanelis Martinez stated they use LED lights and addressed the 
questions by the Board Members regarding the sign and lettering as well. 

Board Member Sanchez stated his recommendation was to remove the 
vinyl letters and keep the sign once the vinyl lettering is no longer needed. 

Chair Frankel asked if there could be a condition that the applicant come 
back in a year to readdress the signage. 

Assistant Town Attorney Recio stated that the applicant could come back 
in a year and whatever is no longer applicable could be removed. 

Discussion took place among the Staff and Board members regarding the 
type of illumination of the sign. 

A motion was made by Board Member MacKenzie for the applicant to come 
back in 12 months to review and remove the vinyl from the price down and 
continue keeping as a monument sign the name of the property, seconded 
by Board Member Bravo. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

D. 9177 Dickens Avenue – Addition

Town Planner Hickey introduced the item. He stated that the property is located
at 9177 Dickens Avenue, within the H30B zoning. The applicant is requesting to
build new additions to the first floor totaling roughly 922 square feet.  The addition
includes 2 bedrooms, 2 bathrooms and a new family room.  The applicant also
plans to convert the existing garage into livable space.

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review
Board. In this report Staff presents the following:

PAGE 11



12 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes
based on the Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the
review

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the
review from the 2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes and 
current Zoning in Progress subject to the following: 

(1) Architecturally embellished metal roof requires approval by the Design
Review Board

(2) The FFE of the addition will need to be confirmed with the Building
Department at time of Building Permit.

(3) Provide landscaping or a planter in front of the converted garage. Per
code section 90-50.1, the installation of planter is only permitted when
the landscaping will result in insufficient off-street parking. There is
sufficient space in the front yard for a landscaped strip which will not
impede off-street parking.

Section 90-50.1: If the garage entrance is located at the front or 
primary corner of the property, landscaping shall be provided 
along the base of the new exterior wall. When the installation of 
landscaping results in insufficient off-street parking, a 
landscaped planter shall be permitted in lieu of the required 
landscaping.  

(4) Pursuant to the Zoning in Progress notice published on August 9, 2020,
and Section 90-6 of the Town of Surfside Code 20% of all landscaping
must be Florida Friendly. Please provide details showing this ZIP
condition is being met.

Edgar Gonzalez, the applicant, presented his project. 

Chair Frankel closed public comments. 

Vice Chair Sanchez asked regarding the ceiling heights, the windows and the 
footprint of the house as well as the raising of the structure. 

Edgar Gonzalez, applicant, answered the questions by the Board and stated the 
entire roof will be done new and impact windows will be added. 

Town Planner Hickey stated he will verify if conditions have been met. 

Board Member MacKenzie asked if they are exceeding 50%. 

PAGE 12



13 

Edgar Gonzalez, applicant, stated they are not exceeding the 50% and they are 
raising the floor of the house as per the owner of the house. 

Further discussion took place among the Board members and the applicant 
regarding the raising of the floor  

Board Member Bravo commented on the color of the roof. 

Chair Frankel asked if the frames are all white. 

Edgar Gonzalez, applicant, stated they are all white frames. 

Board Member Landsman commended the applicant in not adding a second floor 
to the project. 

A motion was made by Board Member Bravo to approve the application with a 
lighter colored roof, seconded by Board Member MacKenzie. The motion carried 
with a 5-0 vote. 

E. 8927 Froude Avenue – Addition

Item was deferred to September 24, 2020 meeting. 

F. 9491 Harding Avenue – Awning

Town Planner Mantell introduced the item. He stated that the property is
located at 9491 Harding Avenue, within the SD-B40 zoning district.  The
current businesses include David and Saul Shoes, Sea View Cleaners,
Specchio’s, 26 & Tapas as well as other storefronts.  The applicant is
proposing to install with one single canvas black awning for the Harding
Avenue and 95 Street facades.  There are currently various awnings in
different sizes and colors along the storefronts.

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Planning and
Zoning Board.  In this report, Staff presents the following:

• Existing and proposed awning
• Applicable Zoning Code regulations, along with the results of the review
• Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends approval by the Board provided the applicant complies with 
2020 Sec. 90-49.2.4, “After 25 feet in length, an awning or canopy shall have 
either a break of a minimum of six inches or articulation of the awning or 
canopy.”  

The following individual from the public spoke on the item: 
George Kousoulas 

PAGE 13



14 

Chair Frankel closed the public comment. 

Vice Chair Sanchez stated it looks elegant and asked why doesn’t it extend to 
Barry Cohen’s office past the store front. 

Board Member Landsman also commented on the color and if it is a good 
choice for the heat and likes the approach. 

Board Member Bravo also discussed the color and encouraged that the new 
code address this as well. 

Board Member MacKenzie commented on the color and there not being 
drawings to see how it projects off the building into the sidewalk. He also asked 
about the 6-inch break. 

Chair Frankel stated they as a Board cannot override the code and that she 
would prefer a lighter color. 

Vice Chair Sanchez suggested getting the recommendation from DVAC 
moving forward. 

Town Planners Hickey and Mantell commented on the 6-inch break and will 
work with the applicant with that.   

Board Member Landsman gave his suggestions and comments. 

A motion was made by Board Member Landsman to approve the application, 
seconded by Board Member MacKenzie. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

G. 9467 Harding Avenue – Façade Change and Outdoor Seating (May be
deferred)

Town Planner Hickey introduced the item. He stated the property is located
at 9467-9473 Harding Avenue, within the SD-B40 zoning district.  The
current businesses include a Kosher Land, a realty office, and medical spa.
The applicant is proposing façade improvements with new windows,
fenestration, a metal awning, as well as outdoor seating to expand the
existing market into the three storefronts and rename it the Grove Kosher
Market.

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Planning and
Zoning Board.  In this report, Staff presents the following:

• Applicable 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes and the current Zoning in
Progress along with the results of the review

• Staff Recommendation

PAGE 14



15 

Staff recommends approval as the proposed development meets the 
requirements of the 2006 and 2020 Zoning Codes and the current Zoning in 
Progress.   Applicant will need to revise plans or provide the following 
information: 

1) When sidewalk café permit is submitted it must meet the standards and
criteria in 2020 Sec. 18-92.

2) Any signage for the proposed development will require review and
approval by the Planning and Zoning Board.

Jordy Sopourn, representing the applicant, stated that Town Planner Hickey 
explained the project and he stated that his client is taking over all three tenant 
spaces to make a boutique grocery store. 

Chair Frankel closed public comment. 

Board Member Landsman commented on the removal of the awning and is in 
favor of awnings to provide protection from the elements and will they be 
bringing back an awning or covering. 

Jordy Sopourn addressed the comments made by Board Member Landsman 
that there is a fair amount of covering. 

Chair Frankel stated it is a nice and clean design and agrees that the old 
awning is beat up. 

Board Member MacKenzie stated it is a good example of articulation of 
massing and likes the project. 

Vice Chair Sanchez likes the project but wants to make sure they do not bump 
out too much. 

A motion was made by Board Member MacKenzie to approve the application, 
seconded by Board Member Bravo. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

H. 9309 Abbott Avenue – Addition (May be deferred)

Item deferred to September 24, 2020 meeting. 

I. 8712 Byron Avenue, Lot A - New Single-Family Residence (May be deferred)

Item deferred to September 24, 2020 meeting. 

Yoann Andreu, applicant, spoke regarding hearing all three applications 
together and agrees with the deferral. 

PAGE 15



16 

A motion was made by Board Member Bravo to defer the item to the 
September 24, 2020 meeting, seconded by Board Member Landsman. The 
motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

J. 8712 Byron Avenue, Lot B - New Single-Family Residence (May be deferred)

Item deferred to September 24, 2020 meeting. 

Yoann Andreu, applicant, spoke regarding hearing all three applications 
together and agrees with the deferral. 

A motion was made by Board Member Bravo to defer the item to the 
September 24, 2020 meeting, seconded by Board Member Landsman. The 
motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

K. 8712 Byron Avenue, Lot C - New Single-Family Residence (May be deferred)

Item deferred to September 24, 2020 meeting. 

Yoann Andreu, applicant, spoke regarding hearing all three applications 
together and agrees with the deferral. 

A motion was made by Board Member Bravo to defer the item to the 
September 24, 2020 meeting, seconded by Board Member Landsman. The 
motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

L. 924 93 Street - New Single-Family Residence (May be deferred)

Item deferred to September 24, 2020 meeting. 

M. 824 88 Street – Awning (May be deferred)

Item deferred to September 24, 2020 meeting. 

6. Discussion Items:

A. Future Agenda Items

Chair Frankel discussed Indian Creek and 25 vs 50; existing fences along
the right away and if needed change with new development, update the
seawall with new construction, awnings with lighter color, the 6-inch break,
the accessory requirement and roof top overhangs. She also commented on
sustainable green building, second floor requirements on second patios, side
stairs, the placing of the garbage cans, as well as the location of the pool
equipment.

PAGE 16



17 

Commissioner Salzhauer asked if DERM approval could be made part of any 
waterfront home that is being built. She asked Town Planner Hickey to 
forward to the entire Board the list of these discussion items from tonight’s 
meeting. 

Chair Frankel commented on Commissioner Salzhauer’s comments 
regarding DERM. 

Town Planner Hickey stated that they will need to meet the intent. 

Board Member MacKenzie requested a landscape architect to submit a 
landscape plan with each new project. 

Chair Frankel stated that is already part of the requirement and if they need 
to make any zoning changes, it has to be with a landscape architect. 

Chair Frankel asked if Commissioner Salzhauer is working with the business 
district in obtaining their opinion on the awnings and it would have to be 
Commissioner Kesl who is the Liaison. 

Commissioner Salzhauer commented on the two alternates being present 
and use of their expertise. 

A motion was made to extend the meeting for 15 minutes to 10:20 p.m. by 
Board Member Landsman, seconded by Board Member Bravo. The motion 
carried with a 5-0 vote. 

The following members of the public spoke: 
George Kousoulas spoke regarding the building code and the Zoning in 
Progress. 
Jeff Rose spoke regarding solar panels being a requirement on new 
construction, give a foot-get a foot, and measure potential versus actual. 

Chair Frankel addressed the comments made by the public speakers. 

Discussion took place among the Board and Town Planner Hickey regarding 
an additional meeting between the 09/24/2020 meeting and the regular 
October meeting.  

Chair Frankel stated that if they are just changing landscaping they do not 
have to resubmit unless they are major changes. 

7. Adjournment

A motion was made by Board Member Landsman to adjourn the meeting without 
objection at 10:28 p.m. The motion received a second from Board Member Bravo. All 
voted in favor. 

PAGE 17



18 

Respectfully submitted, 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2020. 

________________________ 
Judith Frankel, Chair 

Attest: 

_______________________ 
Sandra McCready, MMC 
Town Clerk 

PAGE 18



Page 1 of 11 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Planning and Zoning Board 

Thru: Jason Greene, Interim Town Manager 
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 

CC:  Lillian Arango, Town Attorney 

Date: August 27, 2020 (continued from July 30 meeting) 
Re: 9516 Bay Drive – New 2 Story Home  

The property is located at 9516 Bay Drive, within the H30A zoning district. The applicant is 
requesting to build a new 10,543 square-foot two-story home.  The plans include a new 
driveway, walkways, pool, deck, 3-car garage, covered patio and roof deck. The applicant 
plans to keep the existing gate and hedge.  The applicant has resubmitted revised plans for 
consideration.   

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review Board. In 
this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes based on the
Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the review.

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the review from the
2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

PAGE 19

Item 4A



 
Page 2 of 11 

 
STANDARDS / RESULTS 

 
Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 

 
2020 Sec. 42-92 Lowest Floor Elevation 

Residential Lowest Floor 2020 Lowest Floor 2006 Proposed  
Single-Family Residential 
RS-1 

Base Flood +2 Base Flood 10 

 
2020 Sec. 90-43 Maximum building heights 
2006 Sec 90-155 District Regulation Tables  

Height Required 
Maximum 2020 

Required Maximum 
2006 
 

Proposed  

H30A 
RS-1 

30 feet   
30 feet  29’11” 

 
 
2020 Sec. 90-44. - Modifications of height regulations. 
2006 Sec. 90-176 – Modification of height regulations  

Height Required 
Maximum 2020 

Required 
Maximum 2006 
 

Proposed  

H30A 
 
RS-1 

 
3 feet 

 
1% of height (3 feet) Nothing proposed 

 
2020 Sec. 90-45. Setbacks 
2006 Sec 90-155 District Regulation Tables  
H30A AND H30B  
UPPER STORY FLOOR 
AREA IS 65% to 80% OF 
FIRST STORY FLOOR 
AREA (Only 2020) 

Required 2020 
H30A AND H30B 

 
 

Required 2006 
RS-1 

Proposed  

Maximum Lot Coverage  40%  40% 34.49% 
(5,645/16,367=.389) 

 FIRST STORY (UP TO 15 FT IN HEIGHT)  
Primary frontage  Minimum 20 FT  Minimum 20 FT 20’ 

Interior side (When the site 
consists of more than one 
lot of record, as shown on 
plats in effect on 
November 13, 2018) 

Minimum 10% of 
frontage   

 
 

Minimum 10% of 
frontage  

9’0” (10% of the 90’ 
frontage)  

Rear  Minimum 20 FT  Minimum 20 FT 46’1” 

PAGE 20



 
Page 3 of 11 

 UPPER STORY OR WALL PLANES GREATER  
THAN 15 FT IN HEIGHT  
  

Primary frontage  Minimum 20 FT / 
Average 25 FT 

Minimum 20 FT Minimum 20 FT / 
Average >25 FT 

Interior side (Lots greater 
than 50’ in width) (H30A - 
Wall length is greater than 
20% of the lot depth) 

Minimum: 10% of 
the frontage / 
Average 20% of the 
frontage  
Average: 20 FT or 
20% of the frontage 
whichever is greater, 
plus 5 FT 

Minimum: 10% of 
the frontage  

Minimum: 9’ (10%) 
Average:18’ (20%)  

Rear  Minimum 20 FT / 
Average n/a 

Minimum 20 FT 34’11” FT 

 
2020 Sec. 90-47. – Yards generally, allowable projections 
2006 Sec. 90-177 – Yards generally, allowable projections 

 Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed 
Every part of a required 
yard shall be open to the 
sky, except ordinary 
projections of sills, 
cornices, roof eaves and 
ornamental features  

May project not 
more than 24 
inches into any 
required yard  

May project not 
more than 24 
inches into any 
required yard  

See Zoning in 
Progress at end of 
staff’s analysis   

Air conditioning 
equipment, pool pump or 
other mechanical 
equipment may be 
located in a required rear 
setback, provided; 

a. such equipment 
is at least 15 
feet from any 
other single-
family or two-
family 
residence 

b. shall maintain 
at least a five-
foot setback 
from the rear 
and side yards 

c. is not visible 
from any street 
or waterway 

a. such equipment 
is at least 15 
feet from any 
other single-
family or two-
family 
residence 

b. is not visible for 
any street or 
roadway 

a. >15 FT  
b. >5 FT 
c. Screened by 

landscaping   

 
 
2020 Sec. 90.49 Lot standards 
2006 Sec 90-155 District Regulation Tables  

Lot Standards H30A Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed 
Minimum Lot width 50 feet 50 feet 90’ 
Minimum lot area 8,000 feet 8,000 feet 16,367 SF 

PAGE 21



 
Page 4 of 11 

Maximum lot coverage 40% 40% 34.49% 
(5,645/16,367=.389) 

Pervious area 35% (minimum)  
N/A 40.1% 

 
2020 Sec. 90.50 Architecture and roof decks 
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 

 Required 2020 Required 
2006 Proposed 

Unique Elevation 

A unique elevation from 
the main buildings of the 
adjacent two (2) homes 
shall be created through 
the modulation of at least 
three (3) of the following 
architectural features: 
(a)Length, width and 
massing of the structure; 
(b)Number of stories; 
(c)Façade materials; 
(d)Porches and other 
similar articulation of the 
front façade; 
(e)Number and location 
of doors and windows; 
and 
(f)Roof style and pitch. 

N/A Applicant provided 
updated rendering 
showing front and 
rear elevations.    
 
Proposed home 
has a unique 
elevation from the 
two (2) adjacent 
homes and 
modulation in the 
front and rear 
massing of the 
structure; Various 
size and locations 
of windows on the 
north and south 
break up the 
façade.   

Wall openings 10% for all elevations N/A +10% for all 
elevations  

Roof Material 

(a) Clay Tile;  
(b) White concrete tile;  
(c) Solid color cement 
tile which color is 
impregnated with the 
same color intensity 
throughout, provided 
said color if granted 
approval by the Design 
Review Board; 
(d)Architecturally 
embellished metal if 
granted approval by the 
Design Review Board; or 
(e)Other Florida Building 
Code approved roof 
material(s) if granted 
approval by the Design 
Review Board. 

N/A 

Flat roof provided 

 
 
 

PAGE 22



 
Page 5 of 11 

 
 
 
2020 Sec. 90.50.2 Roof decks 
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 

 Required 2020 Required 
2006 Proposed 

For properties in the 
H30A District 

1) Exterior and 
interior stairs shall 
be permitted  

2) No extension of 
stairs over 30-foot 
height limitation 

3) 10-foot setbacks 
on sides and rear 
of building 

 

N/A 

See Zoning in 
Progress at end of 
staff’s analysis   

 
 
2020 Sec. 90.54 Accessory Structures 
2006 Sec. 90-182 Accessory Structures  

Accessory 
buildings 

Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed 
90-54.2 Accessory 
swimming pools and 
decks, open and 
unenclosed, or covered 
by a screen enclosure, 
may occupy a required 
rear, front, or side 
setback, subject to the 
following minimum 
setbacks: 

(a) Rear: Five feet.  

(b) Interior side: Five 
feet.  

(c) Primary (front) and 
secondary (Corner): Ten 
feet. 

90-182 (b) Accessory 
swimming pools, 
open and 
unenclosed. Or 
covered by a screen 
enclosure, may 
occupy a rear or side 
yard setback, 
provided they are not 
located closer than 
five feet to a rear or 
interior side lot line 
and not closer that 
ten feet from any 
street lot line.  

(a) >20’ 
(b) >9’0” setback 
(c) N/A  

 
2020 Sec. 90-60. - Construction adjacent to bulkhead lines.  
2006 Sec. 90-187 – Construction adjacent to bulkhead lines. 

 Required 2020 Required 2006  
90-187 Proposed 

Indian Creek 
bulkhead lines 

A swimming pool 
construction landward of 
less than 20 feet of the 
Indian Creek bulkhead 
line shall be thoroughly 
investigated by a 
registered structural 

A swimming pool 
construction landward 
of less than 20 feet of 
the Indian Creek 
bulkhead line shall be 
thoroughly 
investigated by a 

Pool is setback 
more than 20 
feet from 
bulkhead line.   

PAGE 23



 
Page 6 of 11 

engineer known to the 
building official to be 
qualified to evaluate 
retaining walls, seawalls, 
bulkhead or other shore 
protective structures. The 
structural engineer shall 
certify that said 
construction will not 
compromise the 
structural capacity of the 
adjacent retaining wall… 

registered structural 
engineer known to the 
building official to be 
qualified to evaluate 
retaining walls, 
seawalls, bulkhead or 
other shore protective 
structures. The 
structural engineer 
shall certify that said 
construction will not 
compromise the 
structural capacity of 
the adjacent retaining 
wall… 

 
 
2020 Sec. 90.56 Fences, walls and hedges –  
2006 Sec 90-183 Fences, walls and hedges 

Fence   

Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed 

90-56.1.A 
A fence or ornamental wall not 
more than six feet in height, as 
measured from grade, may 
project into or enclose an interior 
side or rear yard only.  

90-183 
A fence or ornamental 
wall not more than five 
feet in height, as 
measured from grade, 
may project into or 
enclose an interior side 
or rear yard only.  

Does not apply.  
Will be required to 
comply if new 
fence or wall is 
proposed.  

90-56.2 
A fence or ornamental wall may 
be placed within the front yard or 
primary corner yard if granted 
design review approval by the 
planning and zoning board 

No fence, wall or 
structure of any kind 
shall be constructed in a 
front yard, nor on a 
corner lot in a side yard, 
where a side yard abuts 
a right of way.   

Existing fence and 
gate  

90-56.4 Front yard and corner 
yard fences and ornamental 
walls  
 
Lot frontage is wider than or 
equal to 100 ft 
Maximum Height: 

(a) 4ft + ½ ft per 10 feet of 
lot width exceeding 50 
feet, maximum 5 ft   

Maximum Opacity: 
All wall and fence surfaces two 
(2) feet measured from grade 
shall maintain a maximum 
opacity of fifty (50) percent  

  

An ornamental hedge 
with a height of not more 
than three feet shall be 
permitted.  Under no 
circumstances is any 
fence, wall or hedge to 
be located on a corner 
lot in such a way as to 
conflict with the 
requirements of section 
190-181 (vision 
clearance)  

Existing fence and 
gate 

  

 
 
2020 Sec. 90.61 Paving in front and rear yards in H30 and H40 Districts  
2006 Sec. 90-188 Paving front yards in single-family and two-family Districts 
 

PAGE 24



 
Page 7 of 11 

Paving Yards Required 
2020  

Required 
2006  Proposed  

Front setback permeability 50% minimum  50% minimum >50% (76.4%)  
Front yard landscaped 30% minimum  50% minimum >50% (76.4%)  
Rear yard landscaped 20% minimum  40% minimum >40% (59.9%)  
Number of Curb Cuts One minimum One minimum 1 

Curb Cut side set back 5 feet minimum 5 feet 
minimum >5 feet 

Curb cut width 
1 curb cut not 
more than 18’ in 
width  

1 curb cut not 
more than 18’ 
in width 

17’10” 

Driveway Materials 

Limited to the 
following 
1. Pavers 
2. Color and 
texture treated 
concrete, 
including stamped 
concrete 
3. Painted 
concrete shall not 
be permitted. 
4. Asphalt shall 
not be permitted. 

N/A Existing Pavers  

 
 
2020 -Sec. 90-77 Off-Street Parking Requirements 
2006 - Sec. 90-226 Off-Street Parking Requirements 

Required Minimum Space 
Requirements 
2020 

Minimum Space 
Requirements 
2006 Proposed  

Single-family 2 spaces 2 spaces + 2 spaces  

 

2020 Sec. 90-89.4(6). Street Tree Requirements  
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 

 Required  Required 2006  Proposed  

Street trees shall be 
required at one shade 
tree/palm tree per 20 
linear feet of street 
frontage thereof along 
all public or private 
street right-of-ways in 
all zoning districts. 

2 trees N/A 

Landscape plan in 
progress  

 

 
PAGE 25



 
Page 8 of 11 

2020 Sec. 90-95. Single-family H30A and H30B district landscape requirements. 
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 

 2020 Required  2006 Required Proposed  

A minimum of five trees of 
two different species and 
25 shrubs shall be planted 
per lot.  

5 trees, 25 
shrubs 

N/A 
Landscape plans 
in progress 

 
 
2020 Town of Surfside Adopted Residential Design Guidelines 
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 
 
Building Massing 

Required Proposed  
Building forms should be varied enough to 
avoid monotony and to avoid pyramidal 
massing and should be compatible with 
surrounding houses. 

Building forms on front and rear are varied 
  

 
Decorative Features 

Required Proposed  

Decorative features should be stylistically 
consistent throughout the entire building. 

Wood, glass and additional architectural 
features provided for the front façade.  
rear façade has glass and architectural 
features.   

 
Overall Architectural Style 

Required Proposed  
The overall style of each house should be 
consistent on all sides of the building, as well 
as among all portions of the roof.  

Consistent  

 
Wall Materials and Finishes 

Required Proposed  
The same material should be used on all 
building elevations unless multiple materials 
are a legitimate expression of the particular 
style. 

Additional materials used on the front 
façade to enhance look of home from the 
street.   

 
Roof Materials, Types, and Slopes 

Required Proposed  
Roof types and slopes should be generally 
the same over all parts of a single building.  

The applicant is proposing a flat roof  

Restricted materials for roofs are pre-
determined in the Town’s Building Code, 
which restricts roofing materials to: 
1. Clay tile; 

Flat Roof  

PAGE 26



 
Page 9 of 11 

2. White concrete tile; 
3. Solid color cement tile which color is 
impregnated with the same color intensity 
throughout, provided said color is first 
approved by the planning and zoning board; 
and 
4. Metal. 

 
 
Windows and Trims 

Required Proposed  
Window styles should always be consistent 
among all elevations of a building.  

Consistent  

Frame materials should never vary on a single 
building. 

Consistent  

Window, door and eave trim should be 
consistent on all elevations of the house 

Consistent  

 
Zoning in Progress (ZIP) Conditions [As of August 9th, 2020]  
 

Required Proposed  
Maximum 40% lot coverage provided however 
that the following shall not be included in 
determining the lot coverage:  

(1) Uncovered steps and exterior 
balconies  

(2) Uncovered terraces, patios, 
breezeways, or porches which are 
open on two (2) sides; and  

(3) Covered terraces, patios, breezeways, 
or porches which are open on two (2) 
sides. 

In no instance may the exemptions listed here 
exceed 15% of the total footprint of all principle 
and accessory buildings and structures.  

 
 
 
34.9% (5,645/16,367=.38) 
 
 
 
 
Covered patio, pool deck and gazebo = 
1,084SF = 19.2%  
 
Percentage includes pool and gazebo whice 
do not count toward the 15%  

In the H30A and H30B districts, second story 
lot coverage is limited to 32% of the lot area, 
or 80% of the first-floor area, whichever is less  

Less than 80% of the first floor  
Provided (3,750/5,645 = 66%)  
32% of the total lot area  
Provided (3,750/16,367 = 23%) 

Existing setback requirements set forth in the 
Current Zoning Code will continue to apply, 
unless there is a greater restriction in the 2006 
zoning code, except that only the following 
projections/encroachments shall be permitted:  
 

(1) In the H30A, H30B and H30C districts 
west of Harding Avenue, eaves of 
sloped roofs may project up to 8” into 
any required yard. All other ornamental 
or screening features (in H30A/H30B) 
including cornices, sills, frames, and 

Roof overhangs meet current zoning in 
progress. 
 

(1) 6” for all overhangs within 
setbacks 

 
(2) 40 feet (20 feet in the front/46 feet 

in the rear) combined front yard 
and rear equates to 36% of the lot 
depth  
 

PAGE 27



 
Page 10 of 11 

fins, may project no more than 6” into 
any required yard.  

(2) In the H30A/H30B districts, lots greater 
than 112.5 feet in depth will be 
required to provide front and rear yards 
that combine to equal at least 36% of 
the lot’s depth.  

In the H30A/H30B districts, each lot must 
provide: 

(1) 35% of each lot must be pervious  
(2) 50% of the front yards and 40% of the 

rear yards must be landscaped  
(3) 20% of all landscaping must be Florida 

Friendly  

 
 

(1) 42% pervious coverage   
(2) 76.4% for front yard & 48.1 for rear 

yard 
(3) TBD 

The current zoning codes definition of building 
height will continue to apply to single family 
districts  

Conforms  

Roof decks shall not be permitted in any 
residential zoning district.  

Roof deck has been removed and is no 
longer proposed  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff finds the application meets the 2020 Zoning Code, the 2006 Zoning Code 
and the current Zoning in Progress.   
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August P&Z Required Board Conditions: 
 

(1) Add articulation to the second floor north and south façade.  
 

DM resubmittal review 9/3/2020: 
Applicant has pushed back the terrace on the north and south façade creating 
adding articulation (pushed back roughly 2’6”). 
 

(2) Removal of the access stairs to the roof.  

PAGE 28



 
Page 11 of 11 

 
DM resubmittal review 9/3/2020:  
Applicant has removed the access stairs accordingly.   
 

(3) Removal of the rooftop mechanical equipment. 
 

DM resubmittal review 9/3/2020: 
Applicant has removed the rooftop mechanical equipment and relocated such 
equipment to the ground floor behind the garage.  
 

(4) Bring the seawall up-to-code. 
 

Applicant intends to do so.  
 

(5) Removal of the front access gate.  
 

DM resubmittal review 9/3/2020:  
Applicant intends to keep the existing gate   
 

PAGE 29



PAGE 30



PAGE 31



PAGE 32



PAGE 33



PAGE 34



PAGE 35



PAGE 36



PAGE 37



PAGE 38



PAGE 39



Page 1 of 8 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Planning and Zoning Board 

Thru: Jason Greene, Interim Town Manager 
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 

CC:  Lillian Arango, Town Attorney 

Date: September 24, 2020 
Re: 9309 Abbott Avenue – Addition 

The property is located at 9309 Abbott Avenue, within the H30B zoning district. The applicant 
is requesting to build new additions to the first floor and second floor totaling roughly 1,000 
square feet.  The additions include a dining room/living room and playroom/family room.  

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review Board. In 
this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes and based on
the Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the review.

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the review from the
2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

PAGE 40

Item 4B



 
Page 2 of 8 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 
2020 Sec. 42-92 Lowest Floor Elevation 

Residential Lowest Floor 2020 Lowest Floor 2006 Proposed  

Single-Family Residential 
RS-2 

N/A N/A 7’2” NGVD 
based on FFE of 
existing structure 
(consistent with 
survey) 

 
 
2020 Sec. 90-43 Maximum building heights 
2006 Sec 90-155 District Regulation Tables  

Height Required 
Maximum 2020 

 
Required Maximum 
2006 
 

Proposed  

H30B 
RS-2 

30 feet  30 feet  29’8” feet  

 
2020 Sec. 90-45. Setbacks 
2006 Sec 90-155 District Regulation Tables  
H30A AND H30B  
UPPER STORY FLOOR 
AREA IS 65% to 80% OF 
FIRST STORY FLOOR 
AREA (Only 2020) 

Required 2020 
H30A AND H30B 

 
 

Required 2006 
RS-2 

Proposed  

Maximum Lot Coverage  40%  40% 39.2% 
(2,204/5,625=0.392) 

FIRST STORY (UP TO 15 FT IN HEIGHT)  

Primary frontage  Minimum 20 FT  Minimum 20 FT 20’ (existing) 

Interior side (Lots less than 
50 feet in width) 5 feet 

 
 

5 feet 

5’ / 12’9” (north 
side) 

Rear  Minimum 20 FT  Minimum 20 FT 20’   
UPPER STORY OR WALL PLANES GREATER  
THAN 15 FT IN HEIGHT  
  

Primary frontage  Minimum 20 FT / 
Average 30 FT 

Minimum 20 FT Average 20’ 
(existing structure)  

PAGE 41



 
Page 3 of 8 

Interior side (lots equal to 
or less than 50’ in width) – 
Wall length is equal to or 
greater than 25% of the lot 
depth 

Minimum 5 FT / 
Average 10 FT 

Minimum: 10% of 
the frontage  North Side > 10’  

South Side > 5’  

Rear  Minimum 20 FT / 
Average n/a 

Minimum 20 FT > 20’ (no rear 
dimension provided) 

 
2020 Sec. 90.49 Lot standards 
2006 Sec 90-155 District Regulation Tables  

Lot Standards H30B Required 2020 Required 2006 
RS-2 Proposed 

Minimum Lot width 50 feet 50 feet 50’ 
Minimum lot area 5,600 feet 5,600 feet 5,625 SF 

Maximum lot coverage 40% 40% 39.2% 
(2,204/5,625=0.392) 

Pervious area 35% (minimum)  
N/A 41.7% pervious  

 
2020 Sec. 90.50 Architecture and roof decks 
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 

 Required 2020 Required 
2006 Proposed 

Unique Elevation 

A unique elevation from 
the main buildings of the 
adjacent two (2) homes 
shall be created through 
the modulation of at least 
three (3) of the following 
architectural features: 
(a)Length, width and 
massing of the structure; 
(b)Number of stories; 
(c)Façade materials; 
(d)Porches and other 
similar articulation of the 
front façade; 
(e)Number and location 
of doors and windows; 
and 
(f)Roof style and pitch. 

N/A (a) Existing 2-story  
street front will 
remain.  2-
story addition 
to be bult 
behind  

(b) Second story 
addition design 
is consistent 
with the 
existing 
structure 

(c) Façade 
materials are 
consistent 

(d) Front façade is 
existing 

(e) Windows/doors 
are consistent.   

(f) Roof style and 
pitch of 
addition is 
consistent with 
existing 
structure  

Wall openings 10% for all elevations N/A +10% for all 
elevations  

PAGE 42



 
Page 4 of 8 

Roof Material 

(a) Clay Tile;  
(b) White concrete tile;  
(c) Solid color cement 
tile which color is 
impregnated with the 
same color intensity 
throughout, provided 
said color if granted 
approval by the Design 
Review Board; 
(d)Architecturally 
embellished metal if 
granted approval by the 
Design Review Board; or 
(e)Other Florida Building 
Code approved roof 
material(s) if granted 
approval by the Design 
Review Board. 

N/A 

Barrel roof to 
match existing  
(Light grey) 

 
 
 
Sec. 90.54 Accessory Structures 
2006 Sec. 90-182 Accessory Structures  

Accessory 
buildings 

Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed 
90-54.2 Accessory 
swimming pools and 
decks, open and 
unenclosed, or covered by 
a screen enclosure, may 
occupy a required rear, 
front, or side setback, 
subject to the following 
minimum setbacks: 

(a) Rear: Five feet.  

(b) Interior side: Five feet.  

(c) Primary (front) and 
secondary (Corner): Ten 
feet. 

90-182 (b) Accessory 
swimming pools, open 
and unenclosed. Or 
covered by a screen 
enclosure, may occupy a 
rear or side yard setback, 
provided they are not 
located closer than five 
feet to a rear or interior 
side lot line and not 
closer that ten feet from 
any street lot line.  

Existing small shed meets 
all setback requirements 

 
 
 
2020 Sec. 90.61 Paving in front and rear yards in H30 and H40 Districts  
2006 Sec. 90-188 Paving front yards in single-family and two-family Districts 
 

Paving Yards Required 
2020  

Required 2006  Proposed  

Front setback permeability 50% minimum  50% minimum Existing 
Front yard landscaped 30% minimum  50% minimum Existing 

PAGE 43



 
Page 5 of 8 

Rear yard landscaped 20% minimum  40% minimum >80%   
Number of Curb Cuts One minimum One minimum 1 
Curb Cut side set back 5 feet minimum 5 feet minimum >5 feet  

Curb cut width 

Two curb cuts, 
each curb cut shall 
not be more than 
12 feet in width, 
and there shall be 
at least 12 feet 
between curb cuts 

Two curb cuts, 
each curb cut 
shall not be more 
than 12 feet in 
width, and there 
shall be at least 
12 feet between 
curb cuts 

Existing driveway   

Driveway Materials 

Limited to the 
following 
1. Pavers 
2. Color and 
texture treated 
concrete, 
including stamped 
concrete 
3. Painted 
concrete shall not 
be permitted. 
4. Asphalt shall 
not be permitted. 

N/A Existing pavers 

 
 
2020 -Sec. 90-77 Off-Street Parking Requirements 
2006 - Sec. 90-226 Off-Street Parking Requirements 

Required Minimum Space 
Requirements 
2020 

Minimum Space 
Requirements 
2006 Proposed  

Single-family 2 spaces 2 spaces + 2 spaces  

 

2020 Sec. 90-89.4(6). Street Tree Requirements  
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 

 Required  Required 2006  Proposed  

Street trees shall be 
required at one shade 
tree/palm tree per 20 
linear feet of street 
frontage thereof along 
all public or private 
street rights-of-way in 
all zoning districts. 

2 trees N/A 

Provided  

 

 

PAGE 44



 
Page 6 of 8 

 
2020 Sec. 90-95. Single-family H30A and H30B district landscape requirements. 
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 

 2020 Required  2006 Required Proposed  

A minimum of five trees of 
two different species and 
25 shrubs shall be planted 
per lot.  

5 trees, 25 
shrubs 

N/A 

Provided  

 
2020 Town of Surfside Adopted Residential Design Guidelines 
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 
 
Building Massing 

Required Proposed  
Building forms should be varied enough to 
avoid monotony and to avoid pyramidal 
massing and should be compatible with 
surrounding houses. 

Adjacent homes are Mediterranean style 
bungalows and existing home and addition 
are consistent with neighboring homes.     

 
Decorative Features 

Required Proposed  
Decorative features should be stylistically 
consistent throughout the entire building. 

Windows are consistent with samples 
provided.   

 
Overall Architectural Style 

Required Proposed  
The overall style of each house should be 
consistent on all sides of the building, as well 
as among all portions of the roof.  

Second story addition is consistent with 
existing home.    

 
Wall Materials and Finishes 

Required Proposed  
The same material should be used on all 
building elevations unless multiple materials 
are a legitimate expression of the particular 
style. 

Wall materials are consistent.   

 
Roof Materials, Types, and Slopes 

Required Proposed  
Roof types and slopes should be generally 
the same over all parts of a single building.  

Proposed barrel tile for the addition is 
consistent with the existing home.   

Restricted materials for roofs are pre-
determined in the Town’s Building Code, 
which restricts roofing materials to: 
1. Clay tile; 
2. White concrete tile; 

Existing barrel tile roof.  Proposed barrel 
tile roof  

PAGE 45



 
Page 7 of 8 

3. Solid color cement tile which color is 
impregnated with the same color intensity 
throughout, provided said color is first 
approved by the planning and zoning board; 
and 
4. Metal. 

 
Windows and Trims 

Required Proposed  
Window styles should always be consistent 
among all elevations of a building.  

Consistent  

Frame materials should never vary on a single 
building. 

Consistent  

Window, door and eave trim should be 
consistent on all elevations of the house 

Consistent  

 
Zoning in Progress (ZIP) Conditions [As of August 9th, 2020]  
 

Required Proposed  
Maximum 40% lot coverage provided however 
that the following shall not be included in 
determining the lot coverage:  

(1) Uncovered steps and exterior 
balconies  

(2) Uncovered terraces, patios, 
breezeways, or porches which are 
open on two (2) sides; and  

(3) Covered terraces, patios, breezeways, 
or porches which are open on two (2) 
sides. 

In no instance may the exemptions listed here 
exceed 15% of the total footprint of all principle 
and accessory buildings and structures.  

39.2% (2,204/5,625=0.392) 
 
 
 

In the H30A and H30B districts, second story 
lot coverage is limited to 32% of the lot area, 
or 80% of the first-floor area, whichever is less  

80% of the first floor (1,716/2,204) (78%) 
32% of the total lot area (1,716/5,625) 
(31%) 

Existing setback requirements set forth in the 
Current Zoning Code will continue to apply, 
unless there is a greater restriction in the 2006 
zoning code, except that only the following 
projections/encroachments shall be permitted:  
 

(1) In the H30A, H30B and H30C districts 
west of Harding Avenue, eaves of 
sloped roofs may project up to 8” into 
any required yard. All other ornamental 
or screening features (in H30A/H30B) 
including cornices, sills, frames, and 
fins, may project no more than 6” into 
any required yard.  

(2) In the H30A/H30B districts, lots greater 
than 112.5 feet in depth will be 

Setbacks conform 
 
 
 

 
 

(1) Roof eaves and ornamental 
features do not project into the 
required yard.  
 
 
 
 
 

(2)  (N/A) 

PAGE 46



 
Page 8 of 8 

required to provide front and rear yards 
that combine to equal at least 36% of 
the lots depth.  

In the H30A/H30B districts, each lot must 
provide: 

(1) 35% of each lot must be pervious  
(2) 50% of the front yards and 40% of the 

rear yards must be landscaped  
(3) 20% of all landscaping must be Florida 

Friendly  

 
 

(1) >41.7% (2,346/5,625=.417)  
(2) Front yard existing; Rear yard >80%       

 
(3) Conforms  

The current zoning codes definition of building 
height will continue to apply to single family 
districts  

Height conforms  

Roof decks shall not be permitted in any 
residential zoning district.  

No roof deck proposed 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff finds that the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes and 
recommends approval. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

PAGE 47



PAGE 48



0 
......a 

� . mr�\ 1AW1fW.[
'. 
�!_I.\�...;,_ ���-� 

I 
I 

nrll 

I 

II 
•• 
II 

JAM AS'S'bCIATES ARCHITECTS & ENGINEERS 9205 
SW 154TH AVE MIAMI FLORIDA33196 

ABRAHAM & SARAH FRIED ADDITION OF: DINING/ 

9309 ABBOT AVE LIVING, FAMILY/PLAYROOM 

w 

C 
PAGE 49



PAGE 50

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Text Box
6"

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Text Box
6"

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Rectangle

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Text Box
4/12

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Text Box
8"

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Text Box
29'8"

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Rectangle

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Rectangle

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line

imransgd101@yahoo.com
Line



PAGE 51



PAGE 52



PAGE 53



PAGE 54



 

 

ROOF 
Barrel roof (S-Tiles) 

Capistrano - 3679 Light Gray Range or similar model & color 

 

 

 

PAGE 55



 

 

EXTERIOR 
WALL FINISH 

Smooth Stucco  

Benjamin Moore Seapearl LRV: 77.95 or similar model & color 

 

 

 

 

PAGE 56



 

WINDOWS 
Aluminum Frame White Glass Windows or similar style  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE 57



 

RAILINGS 
Light Gray/Silver or similar style & color 

 

 

PAGE 58



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

PAGE 59



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

PAGE 60



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE 61



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE 62



 

PAGE 63



Page 1 of 2 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Planning and Zoning Board 

Thru: Jason Greene, Town Manager  
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 
CC: Lillian Arango, Town Attorney  

Date: September 24, 2020 
Re: 824 88th Street – Carport Awning  

The property is located at 824 88th Street, within the H30A zoning. The applicant is requesting 
to build a new carport awning totaling roughly 400 square feet.  Such awning will be built over 
the driveway for use as a canopy for parked cars.  

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review Board. In 
this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes based on the
Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the review

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the review from the
2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

PAGE 64

Item 4C



 
Page 2 of 2 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 
Sec. 90-58. - Carport canopies. (2020) 
Sec. 90-185. – Carport Canopies (2006)  

Residential 2020 2006 Proposed  
Such canopy shall not 
exceed 20 feet in length, 
and 20 feet in width. 

400 square feet 
(maximum area)  

400 square feet 
(maximum area)   400 square feet   

The height of such 
canopy shall not exceed 
ten feet. 

10 feet (maximum 
height)  

10 feet (maximum 
height)  10 feet 

The height of the side 
openings shall be at 
least six feet, three 
inches. 

6’3” side opening 
height  

6’3” side opening 
height 8 feet in height 

Rear setback 5 feet 5 feet  >5 feet 
Interior side setback 5 feet 5 feet >5 feet 
Primary front and 
secondary corner 

2 feet 2 feet 10 feet  

Rear of street curb 7 feet 7 feet 10 feet 
A canopy shall at all 
times remain open on all 
four sides, if free 
standing, and open on 
three sides if attached to 
the main building. 

Open on all sides Open on all sides 

Open on all 
sides  

The area under a 
canopy must be entirely 
paved by an approved 
paving material. 

Paved underneath  Paved underneath  
Paved 
underneath  

 
FINDINGS 

 
Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes and 
recommends approval  

 
  

PAGE 65



PAGE 66



2
’

2
’

P
ro

p
o
se

 S
Q

 F
t:
 4

4
0

P
ri
m

a
ry

, 
S

e
co

n
d
a
ry

 &
 C

u
rb

 S
e
tb

a
ck

 -
 1

0
’ 

R
et

o
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
P

lu
s 

L
L

C
1

5
9

7
0

 W
e

st
 S

t 
R

d
 8

4
 S

u
n

ri
se

, 
F

L 
3

3
3

2
6

C
G

C
1

5
0

8
9

5
9

R
o

y 
R

a
sk

in
 

8
2

4
 8

8
th

 S
t 

S
u

rf
s
id

e
, 

F
L
 3

3
1

5
4

2
0
´

2
0
´

8
´

8
´

2
2
´

2
0
´

R
IG

H
T

 V
IE

W
 -

 C
A

R
P

O
R

T
 

C
a
rp

o
rt

 S
o
u
th

 E
le

va
tio

n

F
R

O
N

T
 V

IE
W

 -
 C

A
R

P
O

R
T

 

2
0

’

PAGE 67



2
0
´

8
´

2
’

2
0
´ B

A
C

K
 P

E
R

S
P

E
C

T
IV

E
 -

 C
A

R
P

O
R

T

O
P

T
IO

N
 -

A

PAGE 68



F
R

O
N

T
 V

IE
W

 -
 C

A
R

P
O

R
T

2
0
´

8
´

2
´

2
0
´

O
P

T
IO

N
 -

A

PAGE 69



PAGE 70



PAGE 71



PAGE 72



PAGE 73



Page 1 of 7 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Planning and Zoning Board 

Thru: Jason Greene, Town Manager  
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 
CC: Lillian Arango, Town Attorney  

Date: September 24, 2020 
Re: 1025 90th Street – Garage Conversion 

The property is located at 1025 90th Street, within the H30B zoning. The applicant is requesting 
to convert their existing 267 square-foot garage into a fourth bedroom.  The owner is also 
planning to construct a new pool, wood pergola and new pavers for walkway and driveway, all 
under separate permits.    

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review Board. In 
this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes based on the
Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the review

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the review from the
2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

PAGE 74

Item 4D



 
Page 2 of 7 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 
2020 Sec. 42-92 Lowest Floor Elevation 

Residential Lowest Floor 2020 Lowest Floor 2006 Proposed  
Single-Family Residential 
RS-2 

Base Flood +2 Base Flood +6.31 Existing  

 
 
2020 Sec. 90-43 Maximum building heights 
2006 Sec 90-155 District Regulation Tables  

Height Required 
Maximum 2020 

 
Required Maximum 
2006 
 

Proposed  

H30B 
RS-2 

30 feet  30 feet  Less than 30’ 

 
 
Sec. 90-45. Setbacks 

Setbacks Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed 2006 

Primary Frontage Minimum 20 feet Minimum 20 feet 20’0” – existing 

Interior side (lots over 50 
feet in width)  

10% of the frontage 
(7.5’) 

10% of the frontage 
(7.5’)  

5’0” - existing   

Secondary Frontage  10 ft  10 ft  15’ - existing  

Rear  Minimum 20 feet Minimum 20 feet 10’ - existing   

 
 
2020 Sec. 90.49 Lot standards 
2006 Sec 90-155 District Regulation Tables  

Lot Standards H30B Required 2020 Required 2006 
RS-2 Proposed 

Minimum Lot width 50 feet 50 feet 55’ 
Minimum lot area 5,600 feet 5,600 feet 6,160 square feet 
Maximum lot coverage 40% 40% N/A  

Pervious area 35% (minimum)  
N/A 

38% provided 
(2,383/6,160=.38)  

 
2020 Sec. 90.50 Architecture and roof decks 
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 

 Required 2020 Required 
2006 Proposed 

Unique Elevation 
A unique elevation from 
the main buildings of 
the adjacent two (2) 

N/A A unique elevation 
from the main 
buildings of the 

PAGE 75



 
Page 3 of 7 

homes shall be created 
through the modulation 
of at least three (3) of 
the following 
architectural features: 
(a)Length, width and 
massing of the 
structure; 
(b)Number of stories; 
(c)Façade materials; 
(d)Porches and other 
similar articulation of 
the front façade; 
(e)Number and location 
of doors and windows; 
and 
(f)Roof style and pitch. 

adjacent two (2) 
homes is created 
through the 
modulation of;  

(a) Length, 
width and 
massing of 
the structure  

(b) Façade 
materials  

(c) Roof style 
and pitch  

Wall openings 10% for all elevations N/A +10% for all 
elevations  

Wall openings  All elevations for 
single story additions 
to existing structures 
shall result in a zero 
percent net loss of 
wall openings 
including windows, 
doors or transitional 
spaces defined by 
porches, porticoes or 
colonnades. 

No net loss 
of wall 
openings  

No net loss of wall 
openings  

Roof Material 

(a) Clay Tile;  
(b) White concrete tile;  
(c) Solid color cement 
tile which color is 
impregnated with the 
same color intensity 
throughout, provided 
said color if granted 
approval by the Design 
Review Board; 
(d)Architecturally 
embellished metal if 
granted approval by the 
Design Review Board; 
or 
(e)Other Florida 
Building Code 
approved roof 
material(s) if granted 
approval by the Design 
Review Board. 

N/A 

Barrel tile roof 
(existing)  

 
PAGE 76



 
Page 4 of 7 

 
Sec. 90-50.1 (5) Garage Facades  

Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed  

1 window N/A New window is proposed  

If the garage entrance is located at 
the front or primary corner of the 
property, landscaping shall be 
provided along the base of the new 
exterior wall. When the installation 
of landscaping results in 
insufficient off-street parking, a 
landscaped planter shall be 
permitted in lieu of the required 
landscaping. 

N/A Condition of Approval  

Landscaping shall be provided 
along the base of the new 
exterior wall.  

 
 
2020 -Sec. 90-77 Off-Street Parking Requirements 
2006 - Sec. 90-226 Off-Street Parking Requirements 

Required Minimum Space 
Requirements 
2020 

Minimum Space 
Requirements 
2006 Proposed  

Single-family 2 spaces 2 spaces + 2 spaces  

 
2020 Sec. 90.54 Accessory Structures 
2006 Sec. 90-182 Accessory Structures  

Accessory 
buildings 

Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed 
90-54.2 Accessory 
swimming pools and 
decks, open and 
unenclosed, or covered 
by a screen enclosure, 
may occupy a required 
rear, front, or side 
setback, subject to the 
following minimum 
setbacks: 

(a) Rear: Five feet.  

(b) Interior side: Five 
feet.  

(c) Primary (front) and 
secondary (Corner): Ten 
feet. 

90-182 (b) Accessory 
swimming pools, open and 
unenclosed. Or covered by a 
screen enclosure, may 
occupy a rear or side yard 
setback, provided they are not 
located closer than five feet to 
a rear or interior side lot line 
and not closer that ten feet 
from any street lot line.  

(a) N/A (under 
separate 
permit) 

(b) N/A 
(c) N/A   

 
 

PAGE 77



 
Page 5 of 7 

 
2020 Sec. 90.61 Paving in front and rear yards in H30 and H40 Districts  
2006 Sec. 90-188 Paving front yards in single-family and two-family Districts 
 

Paving Yards Required 
2020  

Required 2006  Proposed  

Front setback permeability 50% minimum  50% minimum >50% existing   
Front yard landscaped 30% minimum  50% minimum >50% existing  
Rear yard landscaped 20% minimum  40% minimum <40% Existing  
Number of Curb Cuts One minimum One minimum 1 (existing)  
Curb Cut side set back 5 feet minimum 5 feet minimum >5 feet 

Curb cut width 
1 curb cut not 
more than 18’ in 
width  

1 curb cut not 
more than 18’ in 
width 

10’7” existing   

Driveway Materials 

Limited to the 
following 
1. Pavers 
2. Color and 
texture treated 
concrete, 
including stamped 
concrete 
3. Painted 
concrete shall not 
be permitted. 
4. Asphalt shall 
not be permitted. 

N/A Brick Pavers 
(existing) 

 
 
 
Town of Surfside Adopted Residential Design Guidelines 
Building Massing 
 

Required Proposed  
Building forms should be varied enough to 
avoid monotony and to avoid pyramidal 
massing and should be compatible with 
surrounding houses. 

Consistent 

 
Decorative Features 

Required Proposed  
Decorative features should be stylistically 
consistent throughout the entire building. Consistent  

 
Overall Architectural Style 

Required Proposed  
The overall style of each house should be 
consistent on all sides of the building, as well 
as among all portions of the roof.  

Consistent  

PAGE 78



 
Page 6 of 7 

 
Wall Materials and Finishes 

Required Proposed  
The same material should be used on all 
building elevations unless multiple materials 
are a legitimate expression of the particular 
style. 

Consistent  

Roof Materials, Types, and Slopes 

Required Proposed  
Roof types and slopes should be generally 
the same over all parts of a single building.  

Consistent  

Restricted materials for roofs are pre-
determined in the Town’s Building Code, 
which restricts roofing materials to: 
1. Clay tile; 
2. White concrete tile; 
3. Solid color cement tile which color is 
impregnated with the same color intensity 
throughout, provided said color is first 
approved by the planning and zoning board; 
and 
4. Metal. 

White concrete tile  

 
Windows and Trims 

Required Proposed  
Window styles should always be consistent 
among all elevations of a building.  

Consistent. 

Frame materials should never vary on a single 
building. 

Consistent 

Window, door and eave trim should be 
consistent on all elevations of the house 

Consistent  

 
 
Zoning in Progress (ZIP) Conditions [As of August 9th, 2020]  
 

Required Proposed  
Maximum 40% lot coverage provided however 
that the following shall not be included in 
determining the lot coverage:  

(1) Uncovered steps and exterior 
balconies  

(2) Uncovered terraces, patios, 
breezeways, or porches which are 
open on two (2) sides; and  

(3) Covered terraces, patios, breezeways, 
or porches which are open on two (2) 
sides. 

In no instance may the exemptions listed here 
exceed 15% of the total footprint of all principle 
and accessory buildings and structures.  

Existing lot coverage  

PAGE 79



 
Page 7 of 7 

In the H30A and H30B districts, second story 
lot coverage is limited to 32% of the lot area, 
or 80% of the first-floor area, whichever is less  

There is not a second story – does not 
apply  
 

Existing setback requirements set forth in the 
Current Zoning Code will continue to apply, 
unless there is a greater restriction in the 2006 
zoning code, except that only the following 
projections/encroachments shall be permitted:  
 

(1) In the H30A, H30B and H30C districts 
west of Harding Avenue, eaves of 
sloped roofs may project up to 8” into 
any required yard. All other ornamental 
or screening features (in H30A/H30B) 
including cornices, sills, frames, and 
fins, may project no more than 6” into 
any required yard.  

(2) In the H30A/H30B districts, lots greater 
than 112.5 feet in depth will be 
required to provide front and rear yards 
that combine to equal at least 36% of 
the lots depth.  

 
Existing setbacks  
 

(1) Less than 8”  
(2) N/A 

In the H30A/H30B districts, each lot must 
provide: 

(1) 35% of each lot must be pervious  
(2) 50% of the front yards and 40% of the 

rear yards must be landscaped  
(3) 20% of all landscaping must be Florida 

Friendly  

(1) Not provided (existing – coverage is 
not changing)  

(2) Not provided (existing – coverage is 
not changing) 

(3) Not provided (existing) 

The current zoning codes definition of building 
height will continue to apply to single family 
districts  

Conforms  

Roof decks shall not be permitted in any 
residential zoning district.  

N/A 

 
 
 

FINDINGS 
 
Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes subject to 
the following conditions of approval: 
 

1. Comply with Sec. 90-50 (7) “If the garage entrance is located at the front 
or primary corner of the property, landscaping shall be provided along the 
base of the new exterior wall.” 
 

2. The FFE of the addition will need to be confirmed with the Building 
Department at time of Building Permit. 

 
  

PAGE 80



 

Town of Surfside – Single-Family and Two-Family Site Plan Application 

 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE  

SINGLE-FAMILY and TWO-FAMILY SITE PLAN APPLICATION 
 

A complete submittal includes all items on the “Single-Family and Two-Family Site Plan Application 
Submission Checklist” document as well as completing this application in full. The owner and agent must sign 
the application with the appropriate supplemental documentation attached.  Please print legibly in ink or type 
on this application form. 
 

PROJECT INFORMATION

OWNER’S NAME 
 

PHONE / FAX 
 

AGENT’S NAME 
 

ADDRESS 
 

PHONE / FAX 
 

PROPERTY ADDRESS 
 

ZONING CATEGORY 
 

 

 

 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSED WORK 

 

 
 
INTERNAL USE ONLY
Date Submitted  Project Number  

Report Completed  Date  

Fee Paid $   

 
 
ZONING STANDARDS

 
 

 
Required Provided  

Plot Size      

Setbacks (F/R/S)          

Lot Coverage      

Height      

  Pervious Area     

 

 
 
                
SIGNATURE OF OWNER   DATE  SIGNATURE OF AGENT    DATE 

DRB Meeting

Application / Plans Due

 ____/____/ 20__

 ____/____/ 20__

Keith B. & Cara Roller

305-484-6044

Victor J. Bruce

370 NE 101st Street - Miami Shores, FL 33138

305-310-5030

1025 90th Street - Surfside, FL

H30B

One-car garage conversion into Bedroom/Bathroom/Laundry Clo.; New
pool and pergola

35% = 2,162.6 square feet 38% = 2,383 square feet

PAGE 81



 
 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE  
SINGLE-FAMILY and TWO-FAMILY SITE PLAN APPLICATION 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD Rules and Procedures (June 2002) 
 

 

 
 

 

Please advise the name of the Representative who will attend the hearing on behalf of this application: 
 
           
NAME OF REPRESENTATIVE    DATE  

 

Thursday 

Victor J. Bruce                                                          07-07-20

PAGE 82



 

Page 1 of 2 
Town of Surfside – Submission Checklist - Single-Family and Two-Family Site Plan Application 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE  
SUBMISSIONCHECKLIST  

SINGLE-FAMILY and TWO-FAMILY SITE PLAN APPLICATION 
 

 
 

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS FOR REVIEW:  

 Completed “Single-Family and Two-Family Site Plan Application” form  
 

 Application fee: $_________ made out to “Town of Surfside”  
 

 Ownership Affidavit  
 

 Survey less than one (1) year old. A survey over one (1) year is sufficient as long as the 
property has not changed ownership and the owner provides an affidavit that no changes 
have occurred since the date of the survey.  

 

 Recent photographs, as visible from the street, of the subject property and of the adjacent 
two (2) homes on each side of the subject property on the same side of street. If the 
adjacent lot(s) are vacant then the next adjacent home(s) shall be utilized. 

 
FOR THE FOLLOWING PLEASE PROVIDE: 

 Two (2) full sized sets (24” x 36” sheets) of complete design development drawings signed 
and sealed 

 One (1) CD, with site plan in PDF format, or other common windows based format. 

 Provided prior to Design Review Board Meeting – Fifteen (15) reduced sized sets (11” x 17” 
sheets) of the complete design development drawings  

 

 Site Plan (Minimum scale of 1" = 20').  
Please show / provide the following: 
 Tabulations of total square footage, lot coverage, setbacks and acreage  
 Entire parcel(s) with dimensions and lot size in square feet  
 Existing and proposed buildings with square footage  
 Buildings to be removed  
 Setbacks  
 Dimensions and locations of all existing and proposed right-of-ways, easements and 

street frontage, including sidewalks, curb and gutter and planting strips  
 All existing and proposed site improvements, including, but not limited to, all utilities, 

retaining walls, fences, decks and patios, driveways and sidewalks, signs, parking areas, 
and erosion control features  

 Location of all existing and proposed trees, vegetation, palms and note tree species  
 Locations and dimensions of parking spaces and lot layout  
 Driveway entrance width and setbacks from property line  
 

 Architectural Elevations (Minimum scale of 1/8" = 1'):  
Please show / provide the following: 
 Provide color elevations, showing all material finishes, textures and landscaping for all 

elevations of the proposed building(s). They should include, at a minimum:  
 All exterior materials, colors and finishes, keyed to samples provided  

Cont.  

Project Name  Project Number 
 Roller Residence

PAGE 83



 

Page 2 of 2 
Town of Surfside – Submission Checklist - Single-Family and Two-Family Site Plan Application 

 
 Roof slopes and materials and color  
 Detail of doors, windows, garage doors  
 Lighting locations and details  
 Dimensions of structure(s) – height, width, and length  
 Deck, railing, stairs details including materials, colors, finishes, and decorative details  
 Exposed foundation treatment  
 Gutters and eaves  
 Abutting structure heights  
 

 Provide samples of colors and/or materials mounted on a display board (to be provided prior 
to Design Review Board Meeting) 

 

 Such additional data, maps, plans, or statements as the Town may require to fully describe 
and evaluate the particular proposed plan 



 

PAGE 84



PAGE 85



PAGE 86



PAGE 87



PAGE 88



PAGE 89



PAGE 90



Page 1 of 7 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Planning and Zoning Board 

Thru: Jason Greene, Town Manager  
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 
CC: Lillian Arango, Town Attorney  

Date: September 24, 2020 
Re: 9157 Froude Avenue – Garage Conversion 

The property is located at 9157 Froude Avenue, within the H30B zoning. The applicant is 
requesting approval to convert their existing garage into a 3rd bedroom.  The applicant 
converted the garage previously without receiving Planning and Zoning Board approval.  

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review Board. In 
this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes based on the
Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the review

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the review from the
2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

PAGE 91

Item 4E



 
Page 2 of 7 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 
2020 Sec. 42-92 Lowest Floor Elevation 

Residential Lowest Floor 2020 Lowest Floor 2006 Proposed  
Single-Family Residential 
RS-2 

Base Flood +2 Base Flood 5.85 NGVD 

 
 
Sec. 90-45. Setbacks 

Setbacks Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed 2006 

Primary Frontage Minimum 20 feet Minimum 20 feet 19’9”feet – existing 

Interior side (50 feet in 
width)  

5’ 5’  N/A  

Rear  Minimum 20 feet Minimum 20 feet N/A   
 
 
2020 Sec. 90.49 Lot standards 
2006 Sec 90-155 District Regulation Tables  

Lot Standards H30B Required 2020 Required 2006 
RS-2 Proposed 

Minimum Lot width 50 feet 50 feet 50’ 
Minimum lot area 5,600 feet 5,600 feet 5,600 square feet 

Maximum lot coverage 40% 40% 
Not provided – 
existing coverage 
is not changing  

Pervious area 35% (minimum) 
 
N/A 

Not provided – 
existing coverage 
is not changing  

 
 
2020 Sec. 90.50 Architecture and roof decks 
2006 No Pertinent Section from Code 

 Required 2020 Required 
2006 Proposed 

Unique Elevation 

A unique elevation from 
the main buildings of 
the adjacent two (2) 
homes shall be created 
through the modulation 
of at least three (3) of 
the following 
architectural features: 
(a)Length, width and 
massing of the 
structure; 
(b)Number of stories; 

N/A A unique elevation 
from the main 
buildings of the 
adjacent two (2) 
homes is created 
through the 
modulation of;  

(a) Length, 
width and 
massing of 
the structure  

PAGE 92



 
Page 3 of 7 

(c)Façade materials; 
(d)Porches and other 
similar articulation of 
the front façade; 
(e)Number and location 
of doors and windows; 
and 
(f)Roof style and pitch. 

(b) Façade 
materials  

(c) Roof style 
and pitch  

Wall openings 10% for all elevations N/A +10% for all 
elevations  

Wall openings  All elevations for 
single story additions 
to existing structures 
shall result in a zero 
percent net loss of 
wall openings 
including windows, 
doors or transitional 
spaces defined by 
porches, porticoes or 
colonnades. 

No net loss 
of wall 
openings  

No net loss of wall 
openings  

Roof Material 

(a) Clay Tile;  
(b) White concrete tile;  
(c) Solid color cement 
tile which color is 
impregnated with the 
same color intensity 
throughout, provided 
said color if granted 
approval by the Design 
Review Board; 
(d)Architecturally 
embellished metal if 
granted approval by the 
Design Review Board; 
or 
(e)Other Florida 
Building Code 
approved roof 
material(s) if granted 
approval by the Design 
Review Board. 

N/A 

White concrete tile  

 
 
Sec. 90-50.1 (5) Garage Facades  

Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed  

1 window N/A New window existing  

If the garage entrance is located at 
the front or primary corner of the 

N/A Condition of Approval  

PAGE 93



 
Page 4 of 7 

property, landscaping shall be 
provided along the base of the new 
exterior wall. When the installation 
of landscaping results in 
insufficient off-street parking, a 
landscaped planter shall be 
permitted in lieu of the required 
landscaping. 

Landscaping shall be provided 
along the base of the new 
exterior wall.  

Currently, there is no 
landscaping located in front of 
the converted garage area.  

 
 
2020 -Sec. 90-77 Off-Street Parking Requirements 
2006 - Sec. 90-226 Off-Street Parking Requirements 

Required Minimum Space 
Requirements 
2020 

Minimum Space 
Requirements 
2006 Proposed  

Single-family 2 spaces 2 spaces + 2 spaces  

 
 
2020 Sec. 90.61 Paving in front and rear yards in H30 and H40 Districts  
2006 Sec. 90-188 Paving front yards in single-family and two-family Districts 
 

Paving Yards Required 
2020  

Required 2006  Proposed  

Front setback permeability 50% minimum  50% minimum Existing (less than 
50%)  

Front yard landscaped 30% minimum  50% minimum Existing (less than 
50%) 

Rear yard landscaped 20% minimum  40% minimum Existing (less than 
40%) 

Number of Curb Cuts One minimum One minimum 2 (existing)  
Curb Cut side set back 5 feet minimum 5 feet minimum >5 feet 

Curb cut width 
1 curb cut not 
more than 18’ in 
width  

1 curb cut not 
more than 18’ in 
width 

Existing  

Driveway Materials 

Limited to the 
following 
1. Pavers 
2. Color and 
texture treated 
concrete, 
including stamped 
concrete 
3. Painted 
concrete shall not 
be permitted. 
4. Asphalt shall 
not be permitted. 

N/A Brick Pavers  

 
 

PAGE 94



 
Page 5 of 7 

 
Town of Surfside Adopted Residential Design Guidelines 
Building Massing 
 

Required Proposed  
Building forms should be varied enough to 
avoid monotony and to avoid pyramidal 
massing and should be compatible with 
surrounding houses. 

Consistent 

 
Decorative Features 

Required Proposed  
Decorative features should be stylistically 
consistent throughout the entire building. Consistent  

 
Overall Architectural Style 

Required Proposed  
The overall style of each house should be 
consistent on all sides of the building, as well 
as among all portions of the roof.  

Consistent  

 
Wall Materials and Finishes 

Required Proposed  
The same material should be used on all 
building elevations unless multiple materials 
are a legitimate expression of the particular 
style. 

Consistent  

Roof Materials, Types, and Slopes 

Required Proposed  
Roof types and slopes should be generally 
the same over all parts of a single building.  

Consistent  

Restricted materials for roofs are pre-
determined in the Town’s Building Code, 
which restricts roofing materials to: 
1. Clay tile; 
2. White concrete tile; 
3. Solid color cement tile which color is 
impregnated with the same color intensity 
throughout, provided said color is first 
approved by the planning and zoning board; 
and 
4. Metal. 

White concrete tile  

 
Windows and Trims 

Required Proposed  
Window styles should always be consistent 
among all elevations of a building.  

Consistent. 

PAGE 95



 
Page 6 of 7 

Frame materials should never vary on a single 
building. 

Consistent 

Window, door and eave trim should be 
consistent on all elevations of the house 

Consistent  

 
 
Zoning in Progress (ZIP) Conditions [As of August 9th, 2020]  
 

Required Proposed  
Maximum 40% lot coverage provided however 
that the following shall not be included in 
determining the lot coverage:  

(1) Uncovered steps and exterior 
balconies  

(2) Uncovered terraces, patios, 
breezeways, or porches which are 
open on two (2) sides; and  

(3) Covered terraces, patios, breezeways, 
or porches which are open on two (2) 
sides. 

In no instance may the exemptions listed here 
exceed 15% of the total footprint of all principle 
and accessory buildings and structures.  

  
  
 
N/A to Garage Conversion 
Not provided   

In the H30A and H30B districts, second story 
lot coverage is limited to 32% of the lot area, 
or 80% of the first-floor area, whichever is less  

There is not a second story – does not 
apply  
 

Existing setback requirements set forth in the 
Current Zoning Code will continue to apply, 
unless there is a greater restriction in the 2006 
zoning code, except that only the following 
projections/encroachments shall be permitted:  
 

(1) In the H30A, H30B and H30C districts 
west of Harding Avenue, eaves of 
sloped roofs may project up to 8” into 
any required yard. All other ornamental 
or screening features (in H30A/H30B) 
including cornices, sills, frames, and 
fins, may project no more than 6” into 
any required yard.  

(2) In the H30A/H30B districts, lots greater 
than 112.5 feet in depth will be 
required to provide front and rear yards 
that combine to equal at least 36% of 
the lots depth.  

 
(1) Existing setbacks  
(2) N/A  

In the H30A/H30B districts, each lot must 
provide: 

(1) 35% of each lot must be pervious  
(2) 50% of the front yards and 40% of the 

rear yards must be landscaped  
(3) 20% of all landscaping must be Florida 

Friendly  

(1) Not provided (existing – coverage is 
not changing)  

(2) Not provided (existing – coverage is 
not changing) 

(3) Not provided (existing) 

PAGE 96



 
Page 7 of 7 

The current zoning codes definition of building 
height will continue to apply to single family 
districts  

Conforms  

Roof decks shall not be permitted in any 
residential zoning district.  

No roof deck proposed 

 
 
 

FINDINGS 
 
Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes subject to 
the following: 
 

 
 

1. Comply with Sec. 90-50 (7) “If the garage entrance is located at the 
front or primary corner of the property, landscaping shall be 
provided along the base of the new exterior wall.” 

2. The FFE of the addition will need to be confirmed with the Building 
Department at time of Building Permit. 
 

 
 
 
 

  

PAGE 97



PAGE 98



PAGE 99



PAGE 100



PAGE 101



PAGE 102



PAGE 103



Page 1 of 3 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Planning and Zoning Board 

Thru: Jason Greene, Interim Town Manager 
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 

CC:  Lillian Arango, Town Attorney 

Date: September 24, 2020  
Re: 400 93rd Street – Fence 

The property is located at 400 93rd Street, within the H30B zoning district. The applicant is 
requesting to build white aluminum picket fence along with an entrance gate for the walkway 
and access gate for the driveway.  

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review Board. In 
this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes based on the
Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the review.

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the review from the
2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

PAGE 104

Item 4F



 
Page 2 of 3 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 
2020 Sec. 90.56 Fences, walls and hedges –  
2006 Sec 90-183 Fences, walls and hedges 

Fence   

Required 2020 Required 2006 Proposed 

90-56.1.A 
A fence or ornamental wall not 
more than six feet in height, as 
measured from grade, may 
project into or enclose an interior 
side or rear yard only.  

90-183 
A fence or ornamental 
wall not more than five 
feet in height, as 
measured from grade, 
may project into or 
enclose an interior side 
or rear yard only.  

Does not apply 
(not proposed in 
the rear or side)  

90-56.2 
A fence or ornamental wall may 
be placed within the front yard or 
primary corner yard if granted 
design review approval by the 
planning and zoning board 

No fence, wall or 
structure of any kind 
shall be constructed in a 
front yard, nor on a 
corner lot in a side yard, 
where a side yard abuts 
a right of way.   

A fence or 
ornamental wall 
may be placed 
within the front 
yard or primary 
corner yard if 
granted design 
review approval by 
the planning and 
zoning board 

90-56.4 Front yard and corner 
yard fences and ornamental 
walls  
 
Wider than 50 ft and less than 
100 ft: 
Maximum Height: 

(a) 4 ft + ½ ft per 10 feet of 
lot width exceeding 50 
feet, maximum 5 ft 
 

Maximum Opacity: 
All wall and fence surfaces two 
(2) feet measured from grade 
shall maintain a maximum 
opacity of fifty (50) percent  

  

An ornamental hedge 
with a height of not more 
than three feet shall be 
permitted.  Under no 
circumstances is any 
fence, wall or hedge to 
be located on a corner 
lot in such a way as to 
conflict with the 
requirements of section 
190-181 (vision 
clearance)  

Lot frontages 
wider than 50 ft 
and less than 100 
ft have a 
maximum fence 
height of 4 ft + ½ ft 
per 10 feet of lot 
width exceeding 
50 feet, maximum 
5 ft. Furthermore, 
all wall and fence 
surfaces above 
two (2) feet 
measured from 
grade shall 
maintain a 
maximum opacity 
of fifty (50) percent 

  
 

 
  

PAGE 105



 
Page 3 of 3 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff finds the application meets the 2020 Zoning Code, the 2006 Zoning Code 
and the current Zoning in Progress provided the following conditions are met: 
 

1) Lot frontages wider than 50 ft and less than 100 ft have a maximum fence height 
of 4 ft + ½ ft per 10 feet of lot width exceeding 50 feet, maximum 5 ft. Furthermore, 
all wall and fence surfaces above two (2) feet measured from grade shall maintain 
a maximum opacity of fifty (50) percent. (Gates shall be required to meet this 
requirement) 
 

2) Provide an elevation rendering for the proposed fence and gates to ensure a 
maximum opacity of 50% or less.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PAGE 106



PAGE 107



PAGE 108



Page 1 of 4 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Planning and Zoning Board  
Thru: Jason Greene, Interim Town Manager 
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 
CC: Lillian Arango, Town Attorney  
Date: September 24, 2020 
Re: 9588 Harding Avenue – Harding Realty 

The subject property is located at 9588 Harding Avenue and is within the SD-B40 
zoning district. The applicant is requesting one (1) Pemanent Wall Sign.  The sign will 
be relocated from its previous address to this new location.   

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review 
Board. In this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes based on
the Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the review

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the review
from the 2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

PAGE 109

Item 4G



 
 

Page 2 of 4 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 
Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 
 
Sec. 90-73 (2020) 
Sec. 90-209 (2006) 

Signs Permitted 2020 Permitted 2006 Proposed  

Area 

Wall Sign 
For frontages less than 
25 feet, a total sign area 
up to 25 square feet 
maximum shall be 
permitted. In no case 
shall the total sign area 
on any single operating 
enterprise exceed 150 
square feet and no 
single sign shall exceed 
45 square feet. 

Wall Sign (26-foot 
frontage) 
For frontages less 
than 25 feet, a 
total sign area up 
to 25 square feet 
maximum shall be 
permitted. In no 
case shall the 
total sign area on 
any single 
operating 
enterprise exceed 
150 square feet 
and no single sign 
shall exceed 45 
square feet. 

Wall Sign (26-foot 
frontage)  
17 square feet 
proposed  

Types 

The following types of 
individually-mounted 
letter signs shall be 
permitted. No open 
face channel letters 
shall be permitted. 
i. Reverse 

channel letter. 
ii. Push-through 

letter. 
iii. Pan channel 

letter. 
iv. Raceway 

mounted letter. 
All exposed 
raceways must 
be painted to 
match finish of 
wall face of the 
building. 

- Reverse Channel 
letter  

PAGE 110



 
 

Page 3 of 4 

Offset 
Signs shall be off-set 
from the wall a 
minimum of one quarter 
inch to a maximum of 
two inches to permit 
rain water to flow down 
the wall face  

- Offset a minimum 
of 1 inch  

Illumination 
All signage, lettering, 
logos or trademarks 
shall be required to be lit 
with white illumination 
from dusk to dawn. The 
illumination may be 
either internal 
illumination or external 
illumination, however, all 
walls below the sign 
shall be illuminated with 
white wall wash LED 
lighting. It shall be 
located and directed 
solely at the sign. The 
light source shall not be 
visible from or cast into 
the right-of-way, or 
cause glare hazards to 
pedestrians, motorists, 
or adjacent properties 
Lighting shall meet all 
applicable electrical 
codes. Intensities of 
illumination shall be 
approved by the building 
official of the town 
before issuance of a 
sign permit. 

- Illumintation tbd 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes subject to 
the following: 
 
Condition of Approval  

 

PAGE 111



 
 

Page 4 of 4 

1) All signage, lettering, logos or trademarks shall be limited to white 
illumination. Please provide additional details showing this requirement is 
being met. Code section 90-73.  

 
 

 

PAGE 112



PAGE 113



PAGE 114



PAGE 115



PAGE 116



PAGE 117



PAGE 118



PAGE 119



PAGE 120



PAGE 121



Page 1 of 3 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Planning and Zoning Board  
Thru: Jason Greene, Interim Town Manager 
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 
CC: Lillian Arango, Town Attorney  
Date: April 2, 2020 
Re: 9454 Harding Avenue – Vish  

The subject property is located at 9454 Harding Avenue and is within the SD-B40 
zoning district. The applicant is requesting one (1) Pemanent Wall Sign.  

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Planning and Zoning 
Board.  In this report, Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations, along with the results of the review
• Staff Findings

STANDARDS / RESULTS 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 

Sec. 90-73 
Signs Permitted 2020 Permitted 2006 Proposed 

Area 

Wall Sign 
For frontages less than 
25 feet, a total sign 
area up to 25 square 
feet maximum shall be 
permitted 

Wall Sign (15-foot 
frontage) 
For frontages less 
than 25 feet, a total 
sign area up to 25 
square feet 
maximum shall be 
permitted. In no 
case shall the 
total sign area on 
any single 
operating 
enterprise exceed 
150 square feet 
and no single sign 

Wall Sign 
35 square feet 

ITEM 4H



 
 

Page 2 of 3 

shall exceed 45 
square feet. 

Types 

The following types of 
individually-mounted 
letter signs shall be 
permitted. No open 
face channel letters 
shall be permitted. 
i. Reverse 

channel letter. 
ii. Push-through 

letter. 
iii. Pan channel 

letter. 
iv. Raceway 

mounted 
letter. All 
exposed 
raceways 
must be 
painted to 
match finish of 
wall face of 
the building. 

- Channel letter  

Offset 
Signs shall be off-set 
from the wall a 
minimum of one 
quarter inch to a 
maximum of two 
inches to permit rain 
water to flow down the 
wall face  

- Sign is off-set 1.5“  

Illumination 
All signage, lettering, 
logos or trademarks 
shall be required to be 
lit with white 
illumination from dusk 
to dawn. The 
illumination may be 
either internal 
illumination or external 
illumination, however, 
all walls below the sign 
shall be illuminated with 
white wall wash LED 
lighting. It shall be 
located and directed 
solely at the sign. The 

- Illumination is 
white 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 

light source shall not be 
visible from or cast into 
the right-of-way, or 
cause glare hazards to 
pedestrians, motorists, 
or adjacent properties 
Lighting shall meet all 
applicable electrical 
codes. Intensities of 
illumination shall be 
approved by the 
building official of the 
town before issuance of 
a sign permit. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes and the 
current Zoning in Progress based on the applicant’s revised set of plans dated 
September 15, 2020.    
 
 

 
 



Page 1 of 3 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Planning and Zoning Board  
Thru: Jason Greene, Interim Town Manager 
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 
CC: Lillian Arango, Town Attorney  
Date: April 2, 2020 
Re: 9454 Harding Avenue – Vish  

The subject property is located at 9454 Harding Avenue and is within the SD-B40 
zoning district. The applicant is requesting one (1) Pemanent Wall Sign.  

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Planning and Zoning 
Board.  In this report, Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations, along with the results of the review
• Staff Findings

STANDARDS / RESULTS 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 

Sec. 90-73 
Signs Permitted 2020 Permitted 2006 Proposed 

Area 

Wall Sign 
For frontages less than 
25 feet, a total sign 
area up to 25 square 
feet maximum shall be 
permitted 

Wall Sign (15-foot 
frontage) 
For frontages less 
than 25 feet, a total 
sign area up to 25 
square feet 
maximum shall be 
permitted. In no 
case shall the 
total sign area on 
any single 
operating 
enterprise exceed 
150 square feet 
and no single sign 

Wall Sign 
35 square feet 

ITEM 4H



 
 

Page 2 of 3 

shall exceed 45 
square feet. 

Types 

The following types of 
individually-mounted 
letter signs shall be 
permitted. No open 
face channel letters 
shall be permitted. 
i. Reverse 

channel letter. 
ii. Push-through 

letter. 
iii. Pan channel 

letter. 
iv. Raceway 

mounted 
letter. All 
exposed 
raceways 
must be 
painted to 
match finish of 
wall face of 
the building. 

- Channel letter  

Offset 
Signs shall be off-set 
from the wall a 
minimum of one 
quarter inch to a 
maximum of two 
inches to permit rain 
water to flow down the 
wall face  

- Sign is off-set 1.5“  

Illumination 
All signage, lettering, 
logos or trademarks 
shall be required to be 
lit with white 
illumination from dusk 
to dawn. The 
illumination may be 
either internal 
illumination or external 
illumination, however, 
all walls below the sign 
shall be illuminated with 
white wall wash LED 
lighting. It shall be 
located and directed 
solely at the sign. The 

- Illumination is 
white 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 

light source shall not be 
visible from or cast into 
the right-of-way, or 
cause glare hazards to 
pedestrians, motorists, 
or adjacent properties 
Lighting shall meet all 
applicable electrical 
codes. Intensities of 
illumination shall be 
approved by the 
building official of the 
town before issuance of 
a sign permit. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes and the 
current Zoning in Progress based on the applicant’s revised set of plans dated 
September 15, 2020.    
 
 

 
 



PAGE 122

Item 4H



Revised Plan 9-15-20

PAGE 123



Revised Plan 9-15-20

PAGE 124



R
ev

is
ed

 P
la

n 
9-

15
-2

0

PAGE 125



Page 1 of 2 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Planning and Zoning Board  
Thru: Jason Greene, Interim Town Manager 
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 
CC: Lillian Arango, Town Attorney  
Date: September 24, 2020 
Re: 9341 Collins Avenue – Monument Sign - Marbella Condominiums 

The subject property is located at 9341 Collins Avenue and is within the H120 zoning 
district (Formly the RD-1 zoning district in the 2006 code). The applicant is requesting 
to replace one (1) Ground Mounted Monument Sign.   

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Planning and Zoning 
Board. In this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes based on
the Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the review

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the review
from the 2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

STANDARDS / RESULTS 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 

2020 Sec. 90-73 
2006 Sec. 90-209 

Signs Permitted 2020 Permitted 2006 Proposed 

Amount One monument sign shall be 
permitted per street frontage  

N/A 1 

Area 
Monument Sign 
The maximum sign area shall 
not exceed 25 square feet  

N/A Monument Sign 
31 square feet 

Height The maximum height shall not 
exceed 5 feet from the ground 

5 feet 6 feet 

Setback 
Monument Sign 
Shall maintain a 5-foot setback 
from all property lines and no 
portion shall be permitted to 

5 feet Monument Sign 
5’ minimum setback 

PAGE 126

Item 4I



 
 

Page 2 of 2 

project within this 5-foot 
setback 

Landscaping  
Monument Sign  
Required to be landscaped at 
the base  

N/A Monument Sign  
Landscaped at base 

Illumination  
Monument Sign  
May be internally or externally 
illuminated  

N/A Monument Sign  
Internal White 
illumintation  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes and the 
current Zoning in Progress based on the applicant’s revised set of plans dated 
September 15, 2020.    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE 127



PAGE 128



PAGE 129



PAGE 130



PAGE 131



PAGE 132



PAGE 133



PAGE 134



PAGE 135



PAGE 136



PAGE 137



PAGE 138



Page 1 of 3 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Design Review Board 
Thru: Jason Greene, Interim Town Manager  
From: James Hickey, AICP, Town Planner 
CC: Lillian Arango, Town Attorney  
Date: September 24, 2020  
Re: 9472 Harding Window Sign – Mendel’s BBQ 

The subject property is located at 9472 Harding Avenue and is within the SD-B40 
zoning district. The applicant is requesting  one (1) Pemanent Window Sign.  

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review 
Board. In this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations for the 2006 and the 2020 codes based on
the Zoning in Progress in place, along with the results of the review

• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the review
from the 2020 Zoning Code only.

• Staff Recommendation

PAGE 139

Item 4J



 
 

Page 2 of 3 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 
Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 
Sec. 90-73 

Signs Permitted 2020 Permitted 2006 Proposed  

Area 

Window Signs 
20 percent of the area 
of the glass window or 
door in which the sign 
is displayed. 
 
 

 
Window Signs 
20 percent of the area 
of the glass window or 
door in which the sign is 
displayed. 
 

 
Window Signs 
Undetermined – 
Requiring the 
applicant to provide 
the dimensions of 
the window/door 
ares in which the 
stickers are 
proposed. 

Location 

 

With the exception of 
theater marquees and 
V-box signs, no sign 
shall be erected so that 
any portion thereof shall 
project over a dedicated 
street or sidewalk or so 
that any portion thereof 
shall project more than 
five feet from any main 
building wall.  
 

-  
Window Signs 
Signs do not project 
over the sidewalk or 
street 

Permanent 
window sign 

Lettering shall not 
exceed eight inches in 
height. Acceptable 
materials include 
painted gold leaf or 
silver leaf, silk-
screened, cut or 
polished metal, cut or 
frosted vinyl, and 
etched glass.  

Shall not exceed eight 
inches in height  

Undeterminied - 
Requiring the 
applicant to provide 
the dimensions of 
the individual letters.  

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff finds the application meets both the 2020 and 2006 Zoning Codes subject to 
the following: 

PAGE 140



 
 

Page 3 of 3 

 
1) Provide the dimensions of the window/door areas in which the stickers are 

proposed. In doing so, show that the maximum 20% coverage is not being 
exceeded.  
 

2) Provide the dimensions of the letters. In doing so, show that the letters do 
not exceed 8 inches in height. Additionally, lettering shall be limited to 
painted gold leaf or silver leaf, silk-screened, cut or polished metal, cut or 
frosted vinyl, and etched glass. 
 

 

PAGE 141



PAGE 142



PAGE 143



PAGE 144



IT
EM

 
O

U
TC

O
M

E 
N

EX
T 

ST
EP

S 
TE

N
TA

TI
VE

 
SC

HE
DU

LE
 

CO
M

PL
ET

E 

FU
TU

RE
 P

Z 
DI

SC
U

SS
IO

N
 IT

EM
S 

Fe
nc

in
g 

Ex
ist

in
g 

no
n-

co
nf

or
m

in
g 

fe
nc

es
 a

nd
 

ga
te

s w
ith

in
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
N

ee
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l d
ire

ct
io

n 
fo

r P
Z 

Bo
ar

d 
O

ct
ob

er
 P

Z 

Se
aw

al
ls 

De
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 to

 re
qu

ire
 

se
aw

al
l u

pg
ra

de
s w

he
n 

co
ns

tr
uc

tin
g 

ne
w

 S
FR

 o
r a

dd
iti

on
s >

50
%

  

N
ee

d 
to

 re
se

ar
ch

 w
ha

t o
th

er
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 re
qu

ire
 

O
ct

ob
er

 P
Z 

Aw
ni

ng
s i

n 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

di
st

ric
t 

Co
de

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 re

qu
ire

s a
 b

re
ak

 in
 

aw
ni

ng
s e

ve
ry

 2
5’

 
Co

or
di

na
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
DV

AC
 

Fu
tu

re
 P

Z 

Ac
ce

ss
or

y 
St

ru
ct

ur
es

 
ZI

P 
re

qu
ire

s 1
5%

 m
ax

im
um

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t r
eg

ar
di

ng
 a

cc
es

so
ry

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 

An
al

ys
is 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
a 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
Fu

tu
re

 P
Z 

Se
tb

ac
k 

– 
In

di
an

 C
re

ek
 

ve
rs

us
 B

isc
ay

ne
 B

ay
 

To
w

n 
pl

an
ne

r, 
To

w
n 

at
to

rn
ey

 a
nd

 
To

w
n 

bu
ild

in
g 

of
fic

ia
l r

es
ea

rc
hi

ng
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Pr
es

en
t f

in
di

ng
s t

o 
PZ

 B
oa

rd
 

Fu
tu

re
 P

Z 

Ro
of

to
p 

O
ve

rh
an

gs
 

ZI
P 

re
qu

ire
s a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f 8

” 
ov

er
ha

nd
 fo

r r
oo

ft
op

 o
ve

rh
an

gs
 

Re
vi

ew
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fr
om

 2
4”

 to
 8

” 
im

pa
ct

s t
he

 
ae

st
he

tic
s a

nd
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 st

yl
e 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
SF

R 

Fu
tu

re
 P

Z 

Re
vi

sio
n 

Fo
rm

at
 

Re
qu

ire
 fu

tu
re

 a
pp

lic
an

ts
 to

 sh
ow

 
re

vi
sio

ns
 o

f p
la

ns
 “

cl
ou

de
d”

 to
 

be
tt

er
 d

ef
in

e 
ch

an
ge

s 

Di
re

ct
io

n 
fo

r P
Z 

as
 to

 w
ha

t t
he

 P
Z 

Bo
ar

d 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
Fu

tu
re

 P
Z 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Pl

an
s 

Re
qu

ire
 L

an
ds

ca
pe

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
 o

r 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 d
es

ig
n 

pr
of

es
sio

na
l t

o 
sig

n 
an

d 
se

al
 p

la
ns

.  
 

In
cl

ud
ed

 fo
r a

ll 
su

bm
itt

al
s,

 o
r j

us
t 

N
ew

 S
FR

 o
r a

dd
iti

on
s o

ve
r 5

0%
 

Fu
tu

re
 P

Z 

PZ
 B

oa
rd

 A
lte

rn
at

es
 

St
ra

te
gi

ze
 o

n 
ho

w
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

al
te

rn
at

es
 in

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 
di

sc
us

sio
ns

 o
n 

fu
tu

re
 to

pi
cs

 

Sc
he

du
le

 fu
tu

re
 m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 a

ll 
PZ

 m
em

be
rs

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

te
rn

at
es

 
to

 d
isc

us
s i

de
as

/o
pt

io
ns

 

Fu
tu

re
 P

Z 

Si
de

 S
ta

irs
 in

 S
et

ba
ck

s 
Di

sc
us

s w
he

th
er

 to
 a

llo
w

 si
de

 st
ai

rs
 

in
 si

de
 y

ar
d 

se
tb

ac
ks

 (c
ur

re
nt

 Z
IP

 
do

es
 n

ot
 a

llo
w

) 

Co
or

di
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
C 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

if 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
is 

in
 

fa
vo

r 

Fu
tu

re
 P

Z 

PAGE 145

Item 5A



O
N

 F
U

TU
RE

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 A
G

EN
DA

 
ZI

P 
Fi

na
liz

in
g 

pr
op

os
ed

 c
ha

ng
es

 
N

ot
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 

CO
M

PL
ET

ED
 

PAGE 146


	Item 3 - Approval of Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes of August 27, 2020
	Item 4A - 9516 Bay Drive
	Item 4B - 9309 Abbott Avenue
	Item 4C - 824 88th Street
	Item 4D - 1025 90th Street
	Item 4E - 9157 Froude Avenue
	Item 4F - 400 93rd Street
	Item 4G - 9588 Harding Avenue
	Item 4H - 9454 Harding Avenue
	Item 4I - 9341 Collins Avenue
	Item 4J - 9472 Harding Avenue
	Item 5A - Future Agenda Items



